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D.1 Agency consultation 

 



From: Airport Developments
To: Sarah Dale
Cc: Zeina Jokadar; "Airspace Protection"
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Wednesday, 25 August 2021 4:49:28 PM
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Hi Sarah,
 
Given the distance of the solar farm from Airservices operated control towers and
Communications/Navigation/Surveillance (CNS) Facilities, Airservices does not need an
assessment of the solar panels.
 
Regards,
 
 

Advisor Airport Development

Tower Road, Melbourne Airport, Tullamarine VIC 3043

Website

 
CAUTION: This e-mail is confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not disclose or use the
information contained in it. If you have received this e-mail in error, please tell us immediately by return e-mail
and delete the document.
 
 
 

From: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Thursday, 5 August 2021 9:04 AM
To: Airport Developments <Airport.Developments@AirservicesAustralia.com>
Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
 
Attention whoever this may concern,
 
Blind Creek Solar Farm Pty Ltd (BCSF) are proposing to develop the Blind Creek Solar Farm
located along Tarago Road, approximately 8 kilometres (km) north of Bungendore, NSW, and
50km east of Canberra, Australian Capital Territory (ACT). The proposed project will have a
capacity of up to 350-400 megawatts (MW).  The project is located within Queanbeyan-Palerang
Local Government Area (LGA).
BCSF is seeking State Significant Development (SSD) Consent under Division 4.7 of Part 4 of the



Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act) for the project. A Scoping Report for
the project was submitted to the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (DPIE) in
early 2021 and SEARs were issued on 11 February 2021; available at:
https://majorprojects.planningportal.nsw.gov.au/prweb/PRRestService/mp/01/getContent?
AttachRef=PDA-10449386%2120210115T001115.163%20GMT
It is our understanding that DPIE consulted with your agency during preparation of the SEARs
and your agency’s comments will be addressed as part of the Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS). BCSF has engaged NGH to prepare the EIS and undertake consultation with relevant
agencies and stakeholders. The EIS will be prepared by the team shown in Table 1, which
includes NGH’s technical experts and specialist sub-consultancies. NGH will prepare the EIS in
accordance with the SEARs and relevant agency comments. Where any deviations are proposed
we will contact the relevant agency to seek endorsement of the proposed changes.
Community consultation, site surveys, background searches, and qualitative and quantitative
assessments commenced in late-2020 and are ongoing. BCSF intend to lodge the development
application (DA) in September 2021.
The purpose of this letter is to engage with your department to ensure all relevant matters are
addressed in the EIS to your satisfaction.  We are happy to provide further information about the
project and our assessment methodologies if you require.
 
Table 1 EIS preparation team

Environmental Issue Consultancy

EIS NGH

Biodiversity (flora and fauna) BDAR NGH

Visual amenity and landscape character, and shadow flicker Moir Landscape Architects

Noise and vibration Renzo Tonin

Aboriginal heritage and Historic heritage NGH

TIA Amber

EMF Human Health NGH

Hydrology and Water Footprint

Soils and Landforms NGH

Land Use NGH

Social and Economic impact NGH

Air quality and climate NGH

Bushfire NGH

SEPP33 PHA NGH

Waste Management NGH

 
If you have any questions, please contact Zeina Jokadar on (04) 47095273.  Zeina would be
pleased to discuss this project with you further.
Yours sincerely,





 
 

From: Government and Parliamentary Services <GPS@casa.gov.au> 
Sent: Thursday, 12 August 2021 9:56 AM
To: sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au
Cc: Government and Parliamentary Services <GPS@casa.gov.au>
Subject: RMS: CASA Acknowledgement GI21/514 - NGH Consulting re Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS
Consultation [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 
 
Dear Ms Dale
 
Thank you for your email below requesting feedback from the Civil Aviation Safety Authority
(CASA) on the proposed Blind Creek Solar Farm.
 
CASA is currently reviewing the proposal and anticipate that we will provide a response to you by
Friday, 27 August 2021.
 
I apologise for any inconvenience this may cause.
 
Kind regards
 
 

Senior Government Relations Officer
Government and Parliamentary Services
CASA\Corporate Services Division
GPO Box 2005, Canberra ACT 2601

      

     
 
 

From: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:32 AM
To: Applications <applications@casa.gov.au>
Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
 
Attention Director of Civil Aviation Safety Authority
 
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



 

Phone Record 

To:  Queanbeyan-Palerang Regional Council – Johan Du Toit – 0418 161 632 

From:  Mike Willson  

Date:  8 July 2021 

Job No: 167 

Subject:  Initial Discussion on Blind Creek Solar Farm 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

Discussed potential access from Currandooley Road and noted it looked like it was in private 

property. Council said it wasn’t listed on their road hierarchy. Noted it looked like there might be 

some sort of agreement in place for the road to service the site. Council noted they would like to see 

some consultation with the relevant stakeholders. 

Noted a BAL or BAR treatment would probably be suitable. I said we would likely be in accordance 

with Austroads Guide. I talked about the expected volumes and he noted they would also be 

considering things like sight distance and road surface condition. Noted they will look at the quality of 

the pavement as part of their assessment 

Noted he couldn’t provide a recommendation on either access and that it was up to us to make a 

decision and recommendation. 

Noted we would recommend road design in accordance with unsealed roads guide. Council noted they 

would require the road would need to be sealed next to dwelling. 

Asked if there was anything further to add – he noted there was a subdivision (Elms Grove) and we 

might want to look at that. Recommended we submit a request to Council and they can provide 

further information. 

Suggested looking at the Council website. 

 



 

 

Application No: PR.2021.1014 

 

01 October 2021 
 
 
Sarah Dale 
Environmental Consultant  
Unit 2, 54 Hudson St 
Hamilton NSW 2303 
 
sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au 
 
 

Information for preparing Environmental Impact Assessment 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

State Significant Development (SSD-13166280) at  
LOT 2 DP 1042679, WHITE LOCK 134 BURROWS LANE BUNGENDORE  NSW  

2621 
 
I refer to your email request of 27 August 2021 seeking comment from council for 
preparation of Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) for the Blind Creek Solar Farm 
and advise that the EIA must include consideration of the following:   
 
Land Use Planning advice 
 
At its meeting 28 July 2021 Council unanimously resolved (Minute No. 222/21) That 
Council:  

1. Agree in principle to proceed with a Planning Agreement with the proponent 
based on Option 2 as outlined in this report, subject to development approval being 
given for the project.  

2. Authorise the CEO to continue negotiations with the proponents, with a 
further report to Council. 

 
Representatives of the Blind Creek Solar Farm had met with Council staff in relation to 
a proposed Planning Agreement and had submitted two non-binding letters regarding a 
possible Voluntary Planning Agreement. I understand communications were held with 
Graeme Harlor and David Carswell.  

 
Since this time the CEO and/or his staff have met with the representatives of the Solar 
Farm to take this resolution forward.  The solar farm applicant is seeking clarification 
from the Department of Planning, Infrastructure and Environment about a Planning 
Agreement. 
 
Council would recommend a condition of approval like condition 12 of SSD 9874 Walla 
Walla and to condition 12 of SSD 10288 Culcairn. 
 



Utilities advice 
 
The EIA will need to consider any impacts on the Bungendore Town Water Supply. 
Council has licenced bores on the boundary of the subject site on which the works are 
proposed, however, the groundwater source extends further to the north-east and 
under the proposed work site. 
 
https://www.industry.nsw.gov.au/ data/assets/pdf file/0016/341404/bungendore-
alluvial-groundwater-sources.pdf 
 
The groundwater impacts from the proposed development are unlikely to be substantial 
however the impact on the Bungendore Town Water Supply and other groundwater 
effects must be considered. 
 
Infrastructure Major Projects advice 
 
The following vehicle related issues must be considered in the EIA: 

 The scoping report determines a route from Goulburn / Tarago to the site.  The 
route is not mapped as a restricted access vehicle (RAV) for the entire length. 

 The intersection on Tarago road will need upgrading; 
 Many areas of Tarago/BGD road aren’t built for loads being discussed and 
 There is a load height issue at Goulburn and Queanbeyan 

 
I trust that these notes and the minutes of the Development Co-ordination and Review 
(DCR) Panel Meeting dated 31 March 2021 assist the preparation of the EIA.   
 
Should you have any questions please contact Jacinta Tonner Program Coordinator 
Development Assessment on 1300 735 025. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 

 
Acting General Manager 
Natural Built Character 
 
Per:  
 
 
 



 

Department of Planning and Environment 

Letter to Applicant  
(consent granted) 
 
Our reference:22/01616 
LOC No: 632206 
 

NSW Department of Planning and Environment – Crown Land 
PO Box 2155, Dangar NSW 2309 

Tel: 1300 886 235 | Email: cl.enquiries@crownland.nsw.gov.au | www.industry.nsw.gov.au/lands 
 

Mr Dominic Osborne 
Lakelands Pty Ltd 
114 Currandooley Road 
BUNGENDORE NSW 2621 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 

Consent for Development 
Comprising:  

Construction and Operation of a Large-Scale Solar Farm 
(SSD-13166280) 

Crown Land 
Lot 1 & 2 DP 1154765  
Lot 1 DP 456698 

Crown reserve Crown road 

Parish Currandooley 

County Murray 

Applicant Dominic Osborne 

 
Consent is granted by the Minister for Lands and Water to the lodgement of applications for 
“Exhibition of the Environmental Impact Statement” for the construction and operation of a large scale 
solar farm under clause 49(1)(b) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, 
and other associated applications required under other legislation, for the development proposal 
described above. 

The Land Owner Consent is granted conditional to the following: 

1. Land Owner Consent will expire after a period of 12 months from the date of this letter if not 
acted on within that time.  Extensions of this consent may be sought  

2. You are required to forward a copy of the development approval to the NSW Department of 
Planning & Environment – Crown Lands (“the department”) after approval and prior to 
commencing works. 

3. You are required to ensure that the approval provided is consistent with this Land Owner 
Consent. 

4. The Land Owner Consent is provided for the works detailed on the plans provided by you and 
retained by the department as DOC21/249618. 

Land Owner Consent is granted in accordance with the following: 

 Land Owner Consent is given without prejudice so that consideration of the proposed 
development may proceed under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and 
any other relevant legislation. 

 The grant of this Land Owner Consent does not guarantee that any subsequent authority to 
occupy the Crown road will be granted. 





 

 

Attachment A – Location Map 

 



 

 
 

 
File Reference: 22/00819 
Account No: W632123 
 

 
PO Box 2215, DANGAR NSW 2309 

Phone: 1300 886 235  (Option 2) 
Fax: (02) 4925 3517 

roads.newcastle@crownland.nsw.gov.au 
www.dpie.nsw.gov.au/lands 

 

TNRCPB03 
 

15 February 2022 
 
 

Lakelands Pty Limited 
Lakelands 
114 Currandooley Rd 
BUNGENDORE NSW 2621 
 

 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Re:  Acknowledgement of receipt of application for closure of road – EP 49717 
 
 
Acknowledgement is made of application to purchase Crown road/s.  Your application has been assigned 
account number W632123.  Your request to have this application expedited has been noted, it will be sent to the 
Business Centre for consideration. 
 
 
Please note the following points: 
 

• Acceptance of the application does not constitute agreement by the Department of Planning and 
Environment - Crown Lands that the application for purchase of the road will be successful; the purpose 
of the initial application process is to establish whether the Crown road is suitable for sale or is required 
for access within the public road network. 

 

• If your application is successful, the land will remain public road until registration of the transfer of title by 
NSW Land Registry Services; upon registration of transfer it will cease to be a Crown road. 

 

• Any enclosure permit held over the Crown road will be retained until a signed contract for sale has been 
received by the department.  Termination of the enclosure permit will be carried out as at the date of 
issue of a tax invoice for the purchase and a termination advice will be issued to you for your records; and 

 

• You should continue to pay rent for an affected enclosure permit as it is called for, pending the outcome 
of your application. 

 
Further information can be obtained from the department’s website at www.dpie.nsw.gov.au/lands If you have 
any questions in relation to your application please contact our office and quote your account number  
W632123.  
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Department of Planning, Industry & Environment - Crown Lands Business Centre 
 





From:
To: Zeina Jokadar
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
Date: Sunday, 5 September 2021 11:21:09 AM
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Hi Zeina,
 
Please find attached a map showing the location of the Crown Roads observed within the
boundary of the Blind Creek Wind Farm using the Lot and DPs provided in Document 20-403
BCSF Consultation Letter Crown Land dated 12 August 2021.
 
 
Regards

A/ Senior Natural Resource Management Officer
 
Crown Lands | Department of Planning, Industry and Environment

 
Level 2, 159 Auburn Street, Goulburn NSW 2580
www.dpie.nsw.gov.au
 

Our Vision: Together, we create thriving environments, communities and economies.
The Department of Planning, Industry and Environment acknowledges that it stands on Aboriginal land. We
acknowledge the traditional custodians of the land and we show our respect for elders past, present and
emerging through thoughtful and collaborative approaches to our work, seeking to demonstrate our ongoing
commitment to providing places in which Aboriginal people are included socially, culturally and economically.
 
 
 

From: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Friday, 27 August 2021 3:10 PM
To: 
Cc: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
 

 
Thanks for the feedback.  Could you provide us a map showing where these are located?
 
Kind regards,
Zeina
 

ZEINA JOKADAR
SENIOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT
BSc, CEnvP





Subject: FW: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
 

 
Thank you for the prompt reply.  Based on our desktop research, Crown land is only adjacent to
the site boundary.
Can you please confirm that we have not missed any crown land that may potentially be located
within the project site?
 
With regards to our current understanding of the location of Crown land, the construction and
operation of the project will not directly impact any crown land. The project does not propose to
use or upgrade any crown land.
Therefore can you please clarify if we still need to complete the attached form?
 
Kind regards,
Zeina
 
 

ZEINA JOKADAR
SENIOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT
BSc, CEnvP
M. 0447 095 273
E. zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au
Unit 2, 54 Hudson St
Hamilton NSW 2303

NSW · ACT · QLD · VIC
WWW.NGHCONSULTING.COM.AU

NGH acknowledges that we work on the traditional lands of First Nations people across
Australia and recognises the enduring connection to the land. We pay our respects to elders,
past, present and emerging.  

 
 
From: 
Sent: Wednesday, August 25, 2021 2:06:48 PM
To: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au>
Cc: 
Subject: FW: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
 
Hi Sarah,
 
As you are seeking Landowners Consent to lodge the DA can you please arrange to have the
attached for Landowners Consent Application Form completed and returned to Crown Lands for
review / assessment. The last page of the form advises what documentation is required to be
submitted with the form.
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 24 August 2021 12:36 PM
To: 

Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
 

 
I believe Warren has been in contact with you in the email chain below and would just like to
follow up if we require any confirmation from Crown Lands?
 
Mapping that we have appears to show Crown Lands exists long the boundary of the project site.
 
Please let me know if we require a letter from you regarding any potential impacts. The EIS is
due at the end of this month so a prompt response is highly appreciated.
 
Thanks
 

SARAH DALE
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT 
BSc. (Earth Science)
M. 0420 692 608
E. sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au
Unit 2, 54 Hudson St
Hamilton NSW 2303

NSW · ACT · QLD · VIC
WWW.NGHCONSULTING.COM.AU
 

   



 

 
 

From:  
Sent: Thursday, 19 August 2021 2:46 PM
To: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>; Sarah Dale
<sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au>
Cc: 

Subject: FW: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
 
Hi Zeina and Sarah
 
Zeina – got your phone message re the Blind Creek Solar Farm this afternoon. This project is
located in an area covered by the Departments Goulburn office. I forwarded the message on to
Goulburn office last week, but they may not yet have had a chance to get in touch with you yet,
with everyone working from home with the lockdowns.
 

 
Goulburn will be able to help from there.
 
Kind Regards

 
 

Natural Resource Management Project Officer
Crown Lands | Department of Planning, Industry and Environment

92 Rusden Street, Armidale NSW 2350
PO Box 1138, Armidale NSW 2350

 
 

From: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Thursday, 12 August 2021 1:30 PM
To: 
Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>; lands.ministerials@industry.nsw.gov.au
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation with Crown Lands
 
To 



 
Please find attached a consultation letter prepared by NGH on behalf of Blind Creek Solar Farm
Pty Ltd for the proposed development of Blind Creek Solar Farm located along Tarago Road
north of Bungendore NSW.
 
Attached is the proposal site shapefile, and a figure for location of the proposal site in relation to
Crown Lands.
 
I understand you work in the northern tablelands region, if this can please be passed onto the
correct region in charge.
 
We look forward to your response,
 
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
Cc: Zeina Jokadar
Subject: #10781175 FW: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 30 July 2021 9:45:28 AM
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OFFICIAL

Good morning Sarah
 
Thank you for your enquiry regarding Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation.
 
I have reviewed your email and forwarded it to appropriate point of contact.
 
You will be contacted if Defence require further information.
 
The reference number for this enquiry is 10781175.
 
If you have any further queries, please contact us on the number below or via our email address.
 
Warm regards
 
 

Customer Service Officer
Defence Archives and Service Centres
North Central Zone / Service Delivery Division
Estate & Infrastructure Group
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Department of Defence
T: CSC (07) 4430 0101, or alternatively 1800 DEFENCE (1800 333 362)
E: yourcustomer.service@defence.gov.au
 
Estate and Infrastructure Group (E&IG) welcomes customer feedback. If you have feedback
regarding E&IG supported products and/or services please use our online ServiceConnect Feedback
then click on the Website Feedback button to submit your feedback.  If you cannot access the
ServiceConnect Feedback button please call 1800DEFENCE (1800 333 362) and a Customer
Service Officer will log the feedback on your behalf.
IMPORTANT: This email remains the property of the Department of Defence. Unauthorised
communication and dealing with the information in the email may be a serious criminal offence.
If you have received this email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete the
email immediately.
 
 

From: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:31 AM
To: Your Customer Service <yourcustomer.service@defence.gov.au>
Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
 



 ⚠  EXTERNAL EMAIL: Do not click any links or open any attachments
unless you trust the sender and know the content is safe.  ⚠

Attention Director of Department of Defence
 
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

Zeina Jokadar
Senior Environmental Consultant
NGH
 
 

SARAH DALE
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT 
BSc. (Earth Science)
M. 0420 692 608
E. sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au
Unit 2, 54 Hudson St
Hamilton NSW 2303

NSW · ACT · QLD · VIC
WWW.NGHCONSULTING.COM.AU
 

   

 

 
 



From:
To: Jakob Ruhl
Cc: Brooke Marshall; Zoe Cox; Matthew Barber; Sarah Robertson
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS and Heritage assessment - NGH and HNSW discussion
Date: Friday, 14 May 2021 6:45:30 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

Hi Jakob,
 
Wednesday would work for us – I have time available from 10.30 to 12.30 or after 3pm on Wednesday.  Let me know if
you’d like me to set up a Teams meeting.
 

 

Heritage NSW, Department of Premier and Cabinet
Level 3, 11 Farrer Place, Queanbeyan NSW 2620

 

  
I acknowledge and respect the traditional custodians and ancestors of the lands I work across.
 
Heritage NSW and coronavirus (COVID-19)
Heritage NSW has taken steps to protect the safety, health and wellbeing of our staff, communities and customers. Whilst our offices remain open, we have put in
place flexible working arrangements for our teams across NSW and continue to adapt our working arrangements as necessary. Face-to-face meetings and field
work/site visits with our customers are subject to rules on gatherings and social distancing measures. We thank you for your patience and understanding at this
time.
 

From: Jakob Ruhl <jakob.r@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Friday, 14 May 2021 3:54 PM
To: 
Cc: Brooke Marshall <brooke.m@nghconsulting.com.au>; Zoe Cox <zoe.c@nghconsulting.com.au>; Matthew Barber
<matthew.b@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS and Heritage assessment - NGH and HNSW discussion
 

 
Thanks for your prompt reply. I will call you on Monday for an initial chat, if that is ok, but I would like to include Matt
Barber and we were thinking of Weds. Let me know if that would suit you and if so, when.
 
Have a great weekend. Thank you.
 
Kind regards,
 
Jakob
 

 

JAKOB RUHL
PRINCIPAL HERITAGE CONSULTANT
M. 0488 448 017
E. jakob.r@nghconsulting.com.au
Unit 17, Level 3, 21 Mary St
Surry Hills NSW 2010

BEGA · BRISBANE · CANBERRA · GOLD COAST · NEWCASTLE · SYDNEY · WAGGA WAGGA
WWW.NGHCONSULTING.COM.AU
Due to precautions around COVID-19, I am working from home 2-3 days per week. Email and mobile are best to
contact me. Thanks for your patience.
 
 



 

 

 

 
 

From:  
Sent: Friday, 14 May 2021 10:51 AM
To: Jakob Ruhl <jakob.r@nghconsulting.com.au>
Cc: Brooke Marshall <brooke.m@nghconsulting.com.au>; Zoe Cox <zoe.c@nghconsulting.com.au>; Matthew Barber
<matthew.b@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS and Heritage assessment
 
Hi Jakob,
 
Apologies I missed your call yesterday and again this morning. I’m in meetings all day today. 
 
Would you be available sometime Monday to discuss this project? I’m thinking we can include Sarah Robertson in the
discussion as well.
 
Thanks,

 

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
Sent: Thursday, 13 May 2021 1:42 PM
To: 
Cc: Brooke Marshall <brooke.m@nghconsulting.com.au>; Zoe Cox <zoe.c@nghconsulting.com.au>; Matthew Barber
<matthew.b@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS and Heritage assessment
 
Hi 
 
Project: Blind Creek Solar Farm
SSD/SSI application no: SSD - 13166280 (Queanbeyan-Palerang Regional)
 
I would like to speak to you about the proposed Blind Creek Solar Farm to be located at Lake George, which is a State
Significant Development and subject to an EIS. I called you earlier today and left a message on your voicemail.
 
Heritage NSW provided advice that full archaeological assessment was required, including test excavations, since the Lake
George sand deposits are identified as an important cultural landscape. NGH and the proponent are keen to ensure that
the archaeological resource is afforded due consideration, care and management. In doing so, I have some ideas about
how best to do that and would like to get your opinion.
 
NGH has undertaken our background assessment and liaised with Dr Amy Mosig Way. We feel confident that the previous
studies undertaken within the proposal area and immediately adjacent establish that there is indeed surface and
subsurface archaeological potential. Given that the proposed development area is not likely to be significantly smaller than
the project area, it is likely that the proposed development will impact upon Aboriginal archaeology and heritage.
However, the time and expense required to undertake widespread survey and testing of the project area would not



arguably equate to greater understanding of the archaeological resource, either from a presence/absence or a research
perspective. I would like to talk to you about methodology options that might still assess the potential impact of the
proposed project as well as significantly further the archaeological scholarship of Lake George and at the same time
provide the Aboriginal community with a deeper understanding of how their ancestors lived in and used the area.
 
Thank you Jackie. Please feel free to call me at your nearest convenience.
 
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
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Any views expressed in this email are those of the individual sender except where the sender expressly and with
authority states them to be the views of the NSW Office of Environment and Heritage.
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
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1

Zeina Jokadar

Subject: FW: Blind Creek Solar Farm - Hydrology Report
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A6611CD9BC800AA002FC45A0C0000007A65696E612E6A406E6768636F6E73756C74696E672E63
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2E006A0040006E006700680063006F006E00730075006C00740069006E0067002E0063006F006D0
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‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Forwarded message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Luke Osborne <luke@striderenewables.com> 
Date: Mon, 13 Dec 2021 at 10:13 
Subject: Re: Blind Creek Solar Farm ‐ Hydrology Report 
To: <t  
Cc:   
 

 
 
I am following up on this in case you have any further questions? Otherwise we will complete the EIS on this basis. 
 
Thanks 
 

 
 
On Thu, 25 Nov 2021 at 14:56, Luke Osborne <luke@striderenewables.com> wrote: 

Dear   
 
On the 21st October we discussed Blind Creek Solar Farm which is proposed near Bungendore NSW. You may 
remember that this project is unusual in that it is led by farmers (including my own extended family) therefore has 
a strong community and agri‐solar focus. The site is presently a pasture for grazing but has been periodically 
cropped. 
 
We have engaged with DPIE water a couple of times to discuss management of Wrights Creek, a 4th order stream, 
incorrectly marked as having a defined flow and a confluence with Butmaroo Ck on the site.  In reality this creek 
drains into a sandy plain and for the most part seems to be absorbed  but can, with sufficient rain, help to fill a very 
shallow wetland via a dispersed overland flow, which then quickly evaporates (this wetland does not appear in 
maps, but we have set back from it, and also set back from some isolated channeling, and used design principles to 
avoid impacting the flows.). 
 
We have been previously advised to manage geomorphology and at our latest meeting you asked that we explicitly 
consider connectivity in the studies. This is now explicitly addressed in the hydrology study attached.  
 
If you have further concerns about the approach to managing these issues, I would be happy to set up another 
meeting.  Note that the EIS is in the latter stages of completion with an expected lodgement mid January. 
 
Kind Regards 
 



From: DPI Landuse Enquiries Mailbox
To: Sarah Dale
Subject: RE: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
Date: Monday, 2 August 2021 11:16:13 AM
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Hi Sarah,
 
Thank you for your email. We have no feedback at this time and will review the EIS and
accompanying documents once exhibited.
 
Regards,
 

Assistant Project Officer
Water Group | Department of Planning, Industry and Environment

    
4 Parramatta Square, 12 Darcy St, Parramatta, NSW 2150.
www.dpie.nsw.gov.au

Our Vision: Together, we create thriving environments, communities and economies
The Department of Planning, Industry and Environment acknowledges that it stands on Country which always was and
always will be Aboriginal land. We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of the land and waters, and we show our
respect for elders past, present and emerging. We are committed to providing places in which Aboriginal people are
included socially, culturally and economically through thoughtful and collaborative approaches to our work.

 

From: Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:18 AM
To: DPI Landuse Enquiries Mailbox <landuse.enquiries@dpie.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
 
Attention DPIE – Water and NRAR
 
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
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DOC21/630899-1 

 
The Proper Officer 
NGH 
Unit 2, 54 Hudson St 
Hamilton, NSW, 2303 
Attention: Sarah Dale 

Environmental Consultant 
 

26 August 2021 

Dear Ms Dale, 

Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation - 20-403 - SSD 13166280 

Thank you for your invitation to the NSW Environment Protection Authority (EPA) on 28 July 2021 

to provide comment on the proposed Blind Creek Solar Farm (the Project).  

The EPA’s response to the invitation to provide Secretary’s Environmental Assessment 

Requirements (SEARs) was provided to Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (DPIE) 

on 8 February 2021. The EPA appreciates your invitation, however notes that solar farms are not 

classified as a scheduled activity under Schedule 1 of the Protection of the Environment Operations 

Act 1997 (POEO Act).  

In that regard, the EPA do not have a regulatory role in the Project. Queanbeyan Palerang Regional 

Council will be the appropriate regulatory authority for all POEO matters during the construction and 

operation of the Project. 

If you have any queries or wish to discuss this matter further, please contact L  

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

Unit Head - Regulatory Operations Regional 



From: Sarah Dale
To: info@fire.nsw.gov.au; firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au
Cc: Zeina Jokadar
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
Date: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:26:23 AM
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Attention Director of Fire and Rescue NSW
 
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
To: enquiry.southeast@lls.nsw.gov.au
Cc: Zeina Jokadar
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
Date: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:10:57 AM
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Attention South East Tablelands Local Land Services
 
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
To: landuse.minerals@geoscience.nsw.gov.au.
Cc: Zeina Jokadar
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
Date: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:12:36 AM
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Attention Steven Palmer and the GSNSW - Land Use team
 
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
Cc: Zeina Jokadar; parks.info@environment.nsw.gov.au
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
Date: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:16:07 AM
Attachments: image001.png
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Attention 
 
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
 

   

 

 
 



Project 20-403 Blind Creek Solar Farm 
Meeting date: January 17 2022 
Meeting time: 2.30-3.30pm 
Attendee:  
Dominic Osbourne - Blind Creek Solar Farm Pty Ltd 
Zeina Jokadar - NGH pty ltd 
Subject: discuss APZ management across the proposal area (namely under the solar array), with 
regard to the operation of Blind Creek Solar Farm as an Agrisolar site. 
 
Draft minutes for consultation records.   
  
Key project features and status: 

• 600Ha Solar Farm site 
• Panel rows are spaced over 5m apart and panel height when horizontal is over 3 m 
• Central Battery Energy Storage facility 
• Operational scheme of the Solar Farm is to include sheep grazing within the footprint of the 

solar farm 
• The Project has received SEARS, and the EIS has progressed on the basis of Agency 

comments received in the SEARs documentation 
• A bushfire assessment report has been prepared by a Level 2 Accredited Practitioner. 
• This report recommends that grass is maintained at 100mm (10cm) in accordance with the 

PBP 2019 Appendix 4. This would be achieved by rotational sheep grazing and manual 
slashing when needed to manage fuel loads. 

• Grass would not be allowed to hay off. 
• 20 m APZ would be maintained around buildings (including Battery energy storage facility)  

 
 
Comments from RFS: 

• The entire allotment has to be managed as an APZ: this means all infrastructure, the entire 
development footprint. 

• Therefore, the grass height under the panels should not be greater than 10cm. 
• Managing grass height is a year round requirement, it is not fire season dependent. 
• The fire season is starting earlier and lasting longer, so grass management has to be carried 

out all year round. 
• A ring road is part of the APZ but does not replace the requirement to manage the entire site 

as an APZ 
• RFS will not tell the developer how to manage the site in order to maintain grass height. It is 

up to the developer and the bush fire planner to develop safeguards and management 
measures that will maintain the grass height. 

• The bushfire assessment report has to demonstrate how the project will meet the intent of 
protecting the asset (i.e the solar farm) from bushfire and prevent the spread of bushfire off 
site. 

• The report has to put forward mitigation measures that would justify a higher grass height, if 
this is being proposed. 

• RFS do not have the resources to review the draft Bushfire assessment report, prior to public 
exhibition. As such, they will only review and provide comments once the DPIE publishes the 
EIS and supporting reports. 

• RFS recommends that the items highlighted in the correspondence between Brad Draper 
and Brad Bourke are addressed in the Bushfire assessment report. 

• Consultation was undertaken between Brad Draper (NGH) and Bradley Bourke (RFS) in 
September 2021. The response from RFS outlined the following: 







Thanks

 
 
From: Brad Draper <brad.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 8 December 2021 9:14 AM
To: 
Subject: RE: DA20211117005011-Original-1: NGH Ref: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm
Environmental Impact Assessment - bush fire
 
Hi 
 
Thank you for your email below.
 
NGH and our client would welcome the opportunity to discuss further by a brief MS Teams
meeting. Would you be available Friday morning between 9am – 12pm, for a 30 minute
timeslot? If so, I will arrange a Teams meeting invite for a time that works for you.
 
We would issue our draft EIS bushfire/hazards chapter for your perusal ahead of the meeting.
 
Regards,
 

BRAD DRAPER
SENIOR PLANNER & BUSHFIRE CONSULTANT
B.UrbRegPlan, RPIA, G.Cert.BushProt, FPAA BPAD
T. 02 4929 2301 M. 0409 375 965
E. brad.d@nghconsulting.com.au
Lvl 1, 31-33 Beaumont St
Hamilton NSW 2303

NSW · ACT · QLD · VIC
WWW.NGHCONSULTING.COM.AU

 
NGH acknowledges that we work on the traditional lands of First Nations people across Australia
and recognises the enduring connection to the land. We pay our respects to elders, past present
and emerging.  
 

From:  
Sent: Friday, 3 December 2021 3:37 PM
To: Brad Draper <brad.d@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: FW: DA20211117005011-Original-1: NGH Ref: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm
Environmental Impact Assessment - bush fire
 
Hi Brad
 
I did give you a call last week, I am happy to discuss over the phone.  A site inspection
is not currently possible due to limited resourcing.  However we should be able to





 
Thank you.
 
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
 

From: Brad Draper 
Sent: Tuesday, 16 November 2021 9:55 AM
To: 
Cc: records@rfs.nsw.gov.au
Subject: RE: NGH Ref: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm Environmental Impact Assessment - bush
fire
 
Good morning 
 
With regard to the correspondence provided below on 3/9/21, could you please advise if the
NSW RFS would be available for a teleconference meeting, say next week, with NGH and our
client? We would like to discuss APZ management across the proposal area (namely under the
solar array), with regard to the operation of Blind Creek Solar Farm as an Agrisolar site.
 
Prior to a meeting, NGH would supply a preliminary bushfire assessment/management response
and details around proposed management of the site (i.e. livestock, rotational grazing), for
consideration by the NSW RFS.
 
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
Sent: Friday, 3 September 2021 9:27 AM
To: Brad Draper <brad.d@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: RE: NGH Ref: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm Environmental Impact Assessment - bush
fire
 
Good morning Brad,
 
The NSW RFS did not receive the SEARs for the proposed development. Notwithstanding, the
NSW RFS advises that the preparation of an Environment Assessment should incorporate a bush
fire hazard assessment prepared by a suitably qualified person. This assessment must include
site-specific recommendations for the proper design of:
 

·     asset protection zones (APZ);
·     measures to prevent a fire occurring within the site from developing into a bush/grass fire

risk to the surrounding area;
·     water supply for fire fighting purposes;
·     land and vegetation management;
·         emergency management procedures, including the development of a Fire Management

plan; and
·     vehicular access and defendable space around the solar array.

 
Protection for the facilities from bush fires can be achieved through a combination of strategies
which will:
 

·     minimise the impact of radiant heat and direct flame contact by separating development
from bush fire hazards;

·         minimise the vulnerability of buildings to ignition and fire spread from flames, radiation
and embers;

·     enable appropriate access and egress for the public and firefighters;
·     provide adequate water supplies for bush fire suppression operations;
·         focus on facility preparedness, including emergency planning and property maintenance

requirements; and
·         facilitate the maintenance of asset protection zones, access for firefighting and on-site

equipment for fire suppression.
 
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

 
The SEARs require an assessment of potential hazards and risks including, but not limited to bush
fires.
 
NGHs assessment of bush fire considerations would refer to the NSW Rural Fire Services’
guideline Planning for Bush fire Protection (PBP) 2019, speficially Section 8.3.5 (wind and solar
farms). Could you please outline any additional, or site specific requirements that the NSW RFS
may consider appropriate for this project to take into consideration?
 
NGH would also consider and discuss the NSW Government Large-Scale Solar Energy Guideline
for State Significant Development (2018), where hazards such as fire, is outlined.
 
Should you wish to provide any comments on the proposal, please respond to this email by the
12th August 2021 with your consolidated comments so that any matters raised may be
considered.
 
Regards,
 

BRAD DRAPER
SENIOR PLANNER & BUSHFIRE CONSULTANT
B.UrbRegPlan, RPIA, G.Cert.BushProt, FPAA BPAD
T. 02 4929 2301 D. 02 49173977 M. 0409 375 965
E. brad.d@nghconsulting.com.au



From:
To: Brad Draper
Subject: RE: NGH Ref: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm Environmental Impact Assessment - bush fire
Date: Friday, 3 September 2021 9:27:13 AM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png

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
 

Development Assessment and Planning Coordinator
Planning and Environment Services (South)
NSW RURAL FIRE SERVICE
PO Box 35, Batemans Bay NSW 2536

   
www.rfs.nsw.gov.au l www.facebook.com/nswrfs l
www.twitter.com/nswrfs
PREPARE. ACT. SURVIVE.

 
 
 
From: Brad Draper <brad.d@nghconsulting.com.au> 



Sent: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 10:40 AM
To: State Operations <State.Ops@rfs.nsw.gov.au>; Planning & Environment Services
<CustomerService.Centre@rfs.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Records <Records@rfs.nsw.gov.au>; Sarah Dale <sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au>; Zeina
Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: NGH Ref: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm Environmental Impact Assessment - bush fire
 
Attention: NSW Rural Fire Service
 
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
Local Government Area (LGA). Project location details can are found in the Scoping Report (refer
to link below).
 
BCSF is seeking State Significant Development (SSD) Consent under Division 4.7 of Part 4 of the
Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act) for the project. A Scoping Report for
the project was submitted to the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (DPIE) in
early 2021 and SEARs were issued on 11 February 2021 (attached); available at:
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
Cc: Development Southern
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation (TfNSW ref: STH14/00044/06)
Date: Monday, 9 August 2021 1:36:16 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.jpg
image006.jpg
e256e729-fb59-4dcf-aed6-3eaab0960b40.png
image007.jpg
20210210 TfNSW response.pdf

Hi Sarah
 
Thanks for your email below, dated 28 July 2021.
 
TfNSW outlined the issues to be addressed as part of the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
in the response to the Department of Planning (dated 10 February 2021). Please see attached
letter.
 
Please ensure all further correspondence is forwarded to
Development.southern@transport.nsw.gov.au.
 
Regards,
Rachel
 
 

Development Services Case Officer
South Region
Transport for NSW
 
Please note: I work part time (Monday and Tuesday)
 
 
 

From: Sarah Dale [mailto:sarah.m.d@nghconsulting.com.au] 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 8:24 AM
To: Development Southern <development.southern@transport.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Zeina Jokadar <zeina.j@nghconsulting.com.au>
Subject: 20-403 - Blind Creek Solar Farm EIS Consultation
 

CAUTION: This email is sent from an external source. Do not click any links or open attachments unless you recognise
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Attention Rachel Carocci
 
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
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1. Introduction 
This Community and Stakeholder Engagement Strategy (the “Engagement Strategy”) is the 
sets out how Blind Creek Solar Farm Pty Ltd (the “Proponent” or “we”) has and will continue to 
communicate with key stakeholders and the broader community in relation to the Blind Creek 
Solar Farm and battery storage project (the “Project”).  
 
This is a working document developed by the team behind the Project which will be updated 
and developed as the Project evolves and community feedback is received.  Phase one covers 
the feasibility phase and includes initial discussions with near neighbours and key stakeholders 
prior to submitting a Scoping Report and prior to SEARs being issued.  Phase two strategy will 
include activities to communicate SEARs and the development of the Community Benefit 
Sharing Scheme and communication activities during the EIS studies. Phase three addresses 
the Exhibition period.  Phase four addresses the Construction phase.  

2. Background 
Renewable energy production on the site is planned to co-exist with agricultural and other 
activities carried out by the landholders, including prime lamb production, regenerative 
agriculture, a community soil carbon project, green waste humus and compost production.   
 
The Project has been conceived of and developed by a group of local farmers, landowners, and 
associates (the “founders”) and located on flat country to the south-west of the existing Capital 
Wind Farm and to the north-east of the Bungendore Sands sand gravel quarry.  
 
This Engagement Strategy is unique on several levels:  

1. The landholders are well connected to the local community and one of them has 
experience in renewable energy communications strategies including working as a 
regional communications manager for the Clean Energy Council for three years; 

2. All local stakeholder engagement has been undertaken by the founders of the Project 
(i.e., local landowners and farmers); and 

3. The communications strategy has been developed to accommodate the changing 
restrictions of social gatherings arising from Covid-19. It is important these regulations 
are observed but equally important that genuine community engagement is achieved. 

3. Goals 
The overarching goal of this Engagement Strategy is to achieve a social licence to operate a 
solar farm and battery project in the Bungendore community.  We will achieve this by: 
 

1. Sharing the financial benefits of the Project with those most impacted and ensuring the 
success of the benefit sharing programme by making it easy for participants to access 
and easy for the project owner to administer; 

2. Maximising the support of our stakeholders by understanding and addressing their 
concerns in a genuine way and ensuring the benefits of the Project are not only shared 
fairly but are aligned to our vision for the Project; and   
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3. Ensuring the goals of the Project are aligned to the goals of the close-knit Bungendore 
community and the region and are on-brand for the Project’s renewable and 
regenerative agriculture narrative.  

4. Aims 
The aim of this Engagement Strategy is to: 

● Identify and understand the social impacts of the Project; 
● Identify effective methods to inform the community about the Project; 
● Effectively communicate the broader goals and objectives of the Project including 

communication with the community, carbon emissions reduction, and the landowners’ 
continuing agricultural activities; 

● Preserve and enhance the Proponent’s and the founders’ reputations as industry leaders 
and valued members of the local community, respectively; 

● Secure long-term relationships with our community stakeholders; 
● Give confidence to the local community that we will deliver on our commitments to them; 
● Give confidence to potential investors and future operators of the Project, that the 

Project has broad community support. 
 
 The Engagement Strategy will identify: 

● The Project’s key community stakeholders; 
● The potential social impacts (both positive and negative) arising from the Project for 

each stakeholder group; 
● The consultation strategy for each stakeholder group; 
● A set of consultation activities set out against the Project’s development timeline. 

 
The Engagement Strategy benefits from having landowners and near-neighbours at the centre 
of the Project, which will help to deepen our understanding of the needs of local stakeholders 
and deal effectively with any concerns and potential impacts. This will enhance our ability to 
anticipate issues and will encourage the community to contribute their thoughts and feedback, 
safe in the knowledge that these will be received with sensitivity and consideration.  
 
The founders and the Proponent understand that the success of the Project is dependent on the 
development of genuine, open and ongoing relationships with key stakeholders and the local 
community.  We acknowledge the importance of ensuring that the Project contains “no 
surprises” for the local community and are committed to developing and nurturing long-term 
relationships between the Project and all its stakeholders. 

5. The main Landholder’s vision for the Project 
The ‘Lakelands’ property forms a significant part of the Project site. The owners of this property 
have shifted their focus over the last two and a half years from pure, intensive farming, toward 
rehabilitation of the land, rebuilding the soil, sequestering of carbon and to do their part to 
reduce climate change while improving their land for animal production.  
 
As part of this refocussing, they decided that it makes absolute sense to use marginal country to 
become renewable energy farmers to keep their family farms sustainable and to use the income 
to restore ecosystems and better manage the land while maintaining animal production. 
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6. Project Details 
The Project is located just off Currandooley Road, approximately 7km from Bungendore in 
NSW, between Iberdrola Australia’s (previously Infigen Energy) operational Capital Wind Farm 
and the Bungendore Sands sand and gravel quarry. It is within the Queanbeyan-Palerang 
Regional Council Local Government Area (LGA) and upon operation, the Project will cover 
approximately 700 ha of land. It comprises Lots 1 and 2 DP1154765, Lot E DP38379 and Lot 1 
DP456698, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 9 DP237079 and Lot 17 DP 535180, held by a total of six 
landowners. 
 
The Project was conceived by the landholder who saw an opportunity to relocate the Capital 
Solar Farm without reducing the livestock carrying capacity of the property or disrupting the 
environmental regeneration programme underway on the ‘Lakelands’ property. Two key areas 
of the property were identified to have potential for a solar farm – the eastern side where the 
approved 50MW Capital Solar Farm was located and the western side, where the Project is 
currently situated. 
 
Under the Local Environmental Plan (LEP), the Project is located on land zoned as RU1 
Primary Production and E3 Environmental Management. Much of the subject land has been 
extensively cleared of grassland and woody vegetation and has been modified by farming 
practices, mostly for grazing (cattle) with some cropping and sand mining. 

7. Community Profile 
Understanding the makeup and values of a community is essential to effective communication 
and to anticipating how a project may impact the community. This section provides a broad 
overview of the community demographics in the Queanbeyan-Palerang LGA and the local 
township of Bungendore. 
 
For information, the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas (SEIFA) is a suite of indices created by 
the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS). The Index of Relative Socio-economic Advantage and 
Disadvantage (IRSAD) summarises data about economic and social conditions of people and 
households in an area. Ranking of NSW suburbs and LGAs are used in this report with 1 being 
most disadvantaged (1st decile) to 2643 being most advantaged (10th decile). 

7.1. Bungendore and surrounding region 
The locality of Bungendore is situated on the south-eastern shore of Lake George / Weereewa / 
Lake Ngungara. The Project site is located approximately 7km from the township of Bungendore 
(population 4,178) and approximately 25km from the township of Tarago (population 426).    
  
Bungendore has grown from 1200 in 2001 to 4,178 in the 2016 census.  The growth of 
population in Bungendore has been underpinned by commuters who work in Canberra who are 
looking for a village and rural lifestyle.  Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander people made up 
2% of the population.  
  
The median age of residents is 38 years, with a slight dominance in male residents at 50.2% 
(ABS, 2016). Within the locality 2,097 people were employed, either full time or part time as of 
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2016 with 66.1% currently full-time and 24.2% part-time and 2.9% unemployed. The highest 
percentage of workers, 20.7% were employed as managers, with 20.3% employed as 
professionals (ABS, 2016). Other major occupations were clerical and administrative workers, 
and technicians and trades workers. 
  
The main industry of employment is in Central Government Administration (11.2%) and Defence 
(8.6%). 
  
The SEIFA score for Bungendore was 1,107.4 in 2016 (ABS, 2016). These indices of wellbeing 
indicate that the locality has a relatively high standard of living without many social or economic 
disadvantages (ABS 2016). 

7.2. Local Government – Queanbeyan and Palerang LGA 
Blind Creek Solar Farm is located in the Queanbeyan-Palerang LGA (population 56,000), which 
covers an area of 5,319 km2 in the Southern Tablelands region of NSW. The LGA is bounded by 
the Snowy Monaro Regional, Yass Valley, Upper Lachlan, Goulburn Mulwaree, Shoalhaven, 
and Eurobodalla council areas and by the Australian Capital Territory (ACT). 
 
The area was formed in 2016 through a merger of the City of Queanbeyan and Palerang 
Councils. The 2016 Census indicates a population density of 0.11 persons per hectare. he 
median age is 38 (ABS, 2016) and Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders make up 3.1% of the 
population. 
  
There were 27,691 people employed in the Queanbeyan-Palerang LGA labour force in 2016, 
65.6% of which were employed full time and 24.8% part time. The highest percentage of 
workers (20%) were employed as Professionals, followed by Clerical and Administrative 
workers (18.3%) (ABS, 2016). Other major occupations included managers, technicians and 
trade workers and community and personal service workers. 
 
The SEIFA score for the Queanbeyan and Palerang LGA was 1053 in 2016 (ABS, 2016). These 
indices of wellbeing indicate that the Queanbeyan and Palerang LGA have a relatively high 
standard of living without many social or economic disadvantages (ABS, 2016). 

7.3. State Government 
Blind Creek Solar Farm is located in the north-east corner of the Monaro state electorate.  
Monaro is a rural electorate, covering 20,479.02 km2. Major industries in the electorate include 
retail, tourism, agriculture, Snowy Hydro Electricity generation, Defence, Government 
Administration and Hospitals.  There is currently a vacancy in the electorate following the 
resignation of John Barilaro, the Deputy Leader of the Nationals (who are in Coalition with the 
Liberal Party) in October 2021. 

7.4. Federal Government 
Bungendore is in the bellwether Federal electorate of Eden Monaro, which is currently held by 
Labor MP, Kristy McBain. Blind Creek Solar Farm sits in the north-east corner of the Eden 
Monaro electorate which covers an area of 41,617 km2.   
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7.5. Local Indigenous Groups 
The Project sits on land with important archaeological heritage.  The founders and Proponent 
have engaged with the local traditional owners and propose to enter discussions to seek input 
regarding the possibility of creating a 2km2 Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone 
between the Project and Lake George / Weereewa / Lake Ngungara for local Indigenous 
peoples and create an open day to enable local Indigenous groups to educate communities 
about the local heritage and the lake.  

7.6. Local Support Groups for Renewable Energy 
● Bungendore Climate Action Group (www.bsfg.org.au) 
● Farmers for Climate Action 
● Of interest, the local Chamber of Commerce uses an image of the wind farm as their 

logo and the local supermarket has an image of the wind farm on the supermarket 
window. 

 

8. Our Approach to Stakeholder Engagement 
8.1. Consultation Principles 

Best practice consultation involves the relevant community stakeholders and other relevant 
stakeholders in all decision-making stages of a project (see Section 10 for Local Stakeholder 
Mapping). The local community stakeholders and other stakeholders and other key 
stakeholders play a key role from project conception, through the development phase, the 
assessment process and into the construction and operational phases.  
 
Effective consultation has three important functions: 

● To facilitate deeper understanding of potential issues and decisions required for the 
project; 

●  To enhance the quality of decisions made for the project; and 
● To allow people to contribute to decisions that affect their lives. 

 
Effective consultation includes three important community engagement principles: 

● Openness – combats assumptions and misinformation; 
● Inclusiveness - consultation should be diverse and representative, not responding only 

to the most vocal stakeholders; 
● Effective communication – requires tools appropriate to the task to build trust between 

parties.  This includes no group emails.  Treat each member of the community as 
individuals and phone or send personal emails.   

 
The communication strategy must identify what the project is fully about, in order to: 

● Inform: one-way communication to deliver information about the project; 
● Consult: two-way communication to seek input into the project; 
● Collaborate and seek participation in elements of the project design and implementation; 
● Early rather than late communication - to maximise engagement opportunities; and 
● Accountability – monitoring and evaluation to ensure consultation aims are being 

achieved. 
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This Engagement Strategy has been developed in accordance with the best practice guidelines 
from the Victorian Renewable Energy Target (VRET)  auction scheme1 and the Clean Energy 
Council’s Guide to Benefit Sharing2. It has also been informed by: 
 

● Community and Stakeholder Engagement Guideline 2017, NSW Department of Industry,  
Planning and Environment; 

● Community Engagement in the NSW Planning System 2003, Planning NSW3 
● Community Guide to EIA 2017. NSW Department of Industry, Planning and 

Environment; 
● Community Consultative Committee Guideline 2019, NSW Department of Industry, 

Planning and Environment4; 
● Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010, NSW 

Government5; 
● Beyond Public Meetings: Connecting community engagement with decision making, 

Twyford Consulting 2007; 
● Renewable Energy Landholder Guide, NSW Farmers6; and 
● Social Impact Assessment Guidelines for State Significant Projects7. 

8.2. COVID-19 
The COVID-19 pandemic has inevitably affected community consultation during the feasibility 
and planning phases of the Project, due largely to social the distancing requirements of Federal 
and State governments and limitations on gatherings. These requirements have been constantly 
changing and as such, we have had to adapt the format and location of consultation, for 
example to hold meetings outdoors or virtually to comply with requirements at the time or 
accommodate community members who may not have wanted face to face meetings.  
 
These challenges have been overcome to a large degree through adopting the alternative 
means and technologies for undertaking community consultation: 
 

● Socially distanced face to face meetings 
● Zoom meetings 
● Online Community Information Sessions 
● Phone calls 
● Emails and texts 
● Small group events 

 
 
1 https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/renewable-energy/vret2   
2 https://assets.cleanenergycouncil.org.au/documents/advocacy-initiatives/community-engagement/guide-to-benefit-
sharing-options-for-renewable-energy-projects.pdf 
3https://www.communityplanningtoolkit.org/sites/default/files/CommunityEngagementHandbookNewSouthWales.pdf 
4 https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/Assess-and-Regulate/Development-Assessment/Community-Consultative-
Committees 
5 https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/cultureheritage/commconsultation/09781ACHconsultreq.pdf 
 
6https://www.nswfarmers.org.au/NSWFA/Content/IndustryPolicy/Resource/Renewable_Energy_Landholder_Guide.as
px 
7 https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/Policy-and-Legislation/Under-review-and-new-Policy-and-Legislation/Social-
Impact-Assessment 
 

https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/renewable-energy/vret2
https://assets.cleanenergycouncil.org.au/documents/advocacy-initiatives/community-engagement/guide-to-benefit-sharing-options-for-renewable-energy-projects.pdf
https://assets.cleanenergycouncil.org.au/documents/advocacy-initiatives/community-engagement/guide-to-benefit-sharing-options-for-renewable-energy-projects.pdf
https://www.communityplanningtoolkit.org/sites/default/files/CommunityEngagementHandbookNewSouthWales.pdf
https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/cultureheritage/commconsultation/09781ACHconsultreq.pdf
https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/Policy-and-Legislation/Under-review-and-new-Policy-and-Legislation/Social-Impact-Assessment
https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/Policy-and-Legislation/Under-review-and-new-Policy-and-Legislation/Social-Impact-Assessment
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● Larger community sessions when allowed 

9. BCSF Engagement Strategy 
The founders and Proponent have a genuine connection to the Bungendore township and 
broader farming community.  The approach to consultation for the Project has been and will 
continue to be upfront, authentic and responsive in order to: 
 

● Foster a transparent and open approach to the development of Blind Creek Solar Farm 
and ensure ‘no surprises’ for the local community; 

● Keep the community and stakeholders informed about the Project through the provision 
of accurate and factual project information; 

● Identify and address community and stakeholder concerns and maintain transparency in 
the project design, implementation, and ongoing operations; 

● Involve stakeholders and community regarding key decisions and milestones; and 
● Observe COVID-19 requirements. 

9.1. Our values 
We have a clear set of values and beliefs that underpin and guide our community and 
stakeholder consultation work (see Table 1). 
 

Table 1: Our beliefs and values 

Integrity Commitment Best Practice 

● This is our founders’ and 
landowners’ community.  
We will operate with 
integrity and work with 
partners who abide by 
the same rules. We 
value our community 
and our stakeholders.  

● We uphold our 
commitments, both 
internal and external. 

● We ensure there are 
genuine, tangible benefits 
for the community. 

● We ensure that the 
community is genuinely 
informed.   

● We respect our local 
relationships and 
friendships regardless of 
individuals’ support for 
the Project. 

● We put landholders and 
the community at the 
centre of our projects. 

● We endeavour to apply 
the least carbon 
intensive methods in all 
elements of development 
and construction. 

  

9.2. Public Participation Spectrum 
Our approach to engaging stakeholders is informed by the International Association for Public 
Participation Spectrum which identifies five levels of public participation (see Table 2Table 2).
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9.2.1.  

Table 2: Spectrum for stakeholder participation in research. 
 
This  table has  been adapted from the Interna tiona l As s ocia tion for Public Participa tion (IAP2) s pectrum of public participa tion in decis ion 
making 8  

 Inform Consult Involve Collaborate Empower 
Community 
engagement 
objective 

- Provide balanced and 
objective information 
to assist the 
community in 
understanding all 
aspects of the 
Project, including 
possible 
problems/issues 

- Obtain feedback from 
the community on 
strategies, options 
and/or decisions 

- Work directly with the 
community throughout all 
stages of the Project 

- ensure community concerns 
and aspirations are 
consistently understood and 
considered 

- Partner with the community in 
each aspect of strategizing, 
development and decision-
making, including the 
development of alternatives and 
the identification of the preferred 
solution 

- Community to lead the 
development of the 
renewable energy Project 
and place decision-making 
in the hands of the 
community 

Promise to 
community 

- Keep the community 
informed through all 
stages of 
development, 
including issues and 
delays 

- Keep the community 
informed 

- Listen and 
acknowledge 
suggestions and 
concerns 

- provide feedback on 
how input influenced 
the decision 

- Work with the community to 
ensure concerns and 
aspirations are directly 
reflected in the alternatives 
developed 

- provide feedback on how 
input influenced the 
decision 

- Look to the community for direct 
advice and innovation in 
formulating solutions incorporate 
advice and recommendations 
into decisions to the maximum 
extent possible 

- Implement what the 
community decides 

 
 
8 Lane, T. and J. Hicks (2017) Community Engagement and Benefit Sharing in Renewable Energy Development: A Guide for Applicants to the Victorian Renewable 
Energy Target Auction. Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning, Victorian Government, Melbourne. 
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Community 
engagement 
outcomes 

- Securing a good site 
to install the 
renewable energy 
facility 

- Gaining strategy 
permission 

- Meeting compliance 
regulations 

- Minimising objections 
effectively managing 
complaints 

- Good stakeholder 
relations 

- A level of community 
awareness and trust in 
the project 

- Long-term, broad, local 
social acceptance and 
knowledge of the Project 
strengthened local 
relationships and trust 

- local advocates for 
renewable energy 

- Broad community participation, 
support and awareness 

- Some sense of local ownership 
- Greater community benefit and 

strong local relationships and 
trust 

- Timely development and easier 
strategizing approval some 
sharing of benefits beyond 
investors 

- Benefit sharing program 
tailored to the local context 
harness the skills and 
capital of the community 

- Upskill community 
members to manage the 
Project  
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10. Local Project Impacts 
We recognise the Project will have visual and practical impacts on some of our neighbours.  We 
have marked out those individuals and groups we believe to be most impacted by the Project 
either through construction or visual concerns post construction and believe those most 
impacted should share in the financial benefits of the Project.  These are outlined below as 
stakeholder groups 1-4. 

Table 3: Local Stakeholder Mapping  
Stakeholder Possible concerns Level of Engagement 

Stakeholder Group 1: 
Close neighbours plus 
visual impact 

Visual, land values, 
farming country, 
glare, construction, 
traffic. 

Seek input to the Project.  Consult and involve.  Keep 
informed about key changes to the Project and seek 
their feedback to these changes.  Welcome on site to 
understand location and the Project and meet as 
required. Provide Founders mobile number.  Include in 
CBSS. 

Stakeholder Group 2: 
Neighbours 2.7km 
Residential Estate  

Visual, glare, land 
values, farming 
country, 
construction, traffic. 

Seek input to the Project.  Keep informed about key 
changes to the Project and seek their feedback to these 
changes.  Welcome on site to understand location and 
the Project and meet as required. Provide Founders 
mobile number. Include in CBSS. 

Stakeholder Group 3: 
Neighbours 5km+ on 
low lying road opposite 
lake with visual impact 

Visual, glare, land 
values, farming 
country. 

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

Stakeholder Group 4: 
Neighbours <6-7km on 
two specific roads on 
ridge with visual impact 

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

Proximity stakeholders – 
no view 

Land values, farming 
country, 
construction. 

Keep informed of Project.  Invite to open days.  Seek 
feedback.  Welcome on site and meet if requested. 

Indigenous community Loss of culture and 
heritage, 
archaeological 
matters. 

Welcome on site to understand location and the Project.  
Include in the CBSS.  Seek input on CBSS and potential 
for Indigenous people working on Project.  Seek input for 
other opportunities.  

Queanbeyan Palerang 
Council and Councillors 

Negative community 
feedback, 
construction issues.  

Welcome Councillors and Council on site to understand 
the location and the Project.  Present to Councillors and 
Council as required. Keep informed of Project 
milestones.  Seek feedback on the Project. Keep 
informed of community reaction.  Negotiate VPA.  

Wider community May be concerned 
about distant view of 
solar farm. Not 
interested in 
renewable energy. 
Concerned about 
increased pressure 
on township. 

Engage early.  Keep informed of milestones and 
approval process.  Invite to open days.  Ensure 
community knows how to provide feedback and to 
register for jobs and provision of services.  
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Concerned about 
local traffic. 
Concerned that 
locals won’t benefit 
from jobs and 
provision of services.   

Rural Fire Services Bushfire 
management 

Engage early to seek input and feedback to the Project.  
Keep informed of Project milestones.  Welcome on site 
to understand the location and the Project.   

Local business 
community 

Concern that 
opportunities for 
local service 
providers are not 
available. 

Keep informed of the Project and Project milestones.  
Invite to Open Days and to register as interested in 
providing services.  Ensure information about 
opportunities is posted on website and utilise local 
media.  Utilise other local channels such as Chamber of 
Commerce to keep service providers and businesses 
informed.  

Local job seekers Opportunities to 
work on BCSF 

Keep informed of the Project and Project milestones via 
website, local media and social media channels.  Invite 
to Open Days and to register as interested in working on 
BCSF.  

Local mine Concerned about 
dust impacting solar 
farm and resulting in 
complaints. 

Keep informed of Project milestones. 

 

10.1. Local Stakeholder Summary 
We have assessed the following groups as key stakeholders who have been identified 
according to their proximity to or visual impact from the Project or for their potential to have 
other concerns regarding the Project.  A tailored strategy will be developed for each group at 
key steps throughout the Project. Each will be treated as a separate entity to identify issues, 
seek their feedback and input, and where relevant, include this in the Engagement Strategy.   

10.1.1. Stakeholder Group 1  
This group includes one immediate neighbour with no residence (approximately 300m), two 
farms (one with a residence and one with no residence) within 1.5km of the Project and one 
farm with residence within 3.8km with an elevated view of the Project.  The Founders have been 
in discussions with this group of landholders. 

10.1.2. Stakeholder Group 2  
This group is a residential development 2.7km and further from the Project.  The southern 
portion has no view of the Project.  The natural landscape blocks a view of the Project from all 
but two residences.  The two residences with a view of the Project are on the north-eastern 
corner of the estate and will have a broken visual impact from 2.7km. While we have assessed 
that there will be minimal visual impact for this residential community, the Founders have been 
working with the Community Committee who manage the Estate Community Association of the 
residential development to keep them informed about the Project, understand their concerns, 
and seek their input as to the best use of the contribution amount (e.g., to a community project).  
Possible options include fixing an existing bore, a new kitchen and toilet for the community hall, 
landscaping, tree planting and fixed BBQ for the common paddock. We will encourage the 
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committee to ensure the funds are spent locally to ensure the benefits flow back into town. This 
group is likely to be the most impacted during construction.   

10.1.3. Stakeholder Group 3  
This stakeholder group resides on the low-lying western side of Weereewa / Lake Ngungara / 
Lake George between 5 and 7km west of the Project. We believe there are 16 relevant 
residences in this group and the Founders have been in discussion with these residences.  
Some will have no view; some will have a partial view, and some will have a larger view at a low 
level across the valley. After consultation was undertaken two further residences have been 
added to this group bringing the number to 18 residences.  The founders are currently in 
discussion with these two further residences to ensure they understand the Project location, 
details, and the planning process. 

10.1.4. Stakeholder Group 4 
This group comprises relevant residences between 6 and 7km from the Project on two specific 
roads with a view from the escarpment. Some of these residences sit at the top of the 
escarpment and directly overlook the proposed site for the solar farm. To date we believe there 
are 16 relevant residences in this group with a minimal to significant view.  The Founders have 
been in discussion with these residences. 

10.1.5. Proximity Stakeholders with no visibility of the Project 
This group comprises landholders and residences in the vicinity of the proposed Project whom 
we have assessed as not being impacted by the operational development but may be impacted 
during construction. The Founders have been in discussion with the Proximity stakeholders. 

10.1.6. Wider Bungendore Community  
This group includes the Bungendore township, which is 7km from the Project, plus community 
groups such as the Rural Fire Service (RFS), local council, local State and Federal politicians. 
Funds will be provided to this Group from the Project’s CBSS for sustainable agriculture, 
environmental restoration, and community building. 

10.1.7. Local Indigenous Community 
This group includes the Indigenous Groups who identify themselves as interested parties during 
the archaeology process.  The Founders are also talking with Elders from the Ngambri Land 
Council and Ngunnawal Group.  

10.1.8. Local Business Community 
This group includes local businesses that could profit or be impacted by the construction of 
Blind Creek Solar Farm.  They include the local hardware and rural supplies businesses, 
motels, hotels, AirBnbs, cafes, restaurants, mechanics, surveyors, electrical engineers, civil 
contractors, supermarket, petrol station etc in the Bungendore, Tarago, Queanbeyan, 
Braidwood, Goulburn region.     

10.1.9. Rural Fire Services 
This includes the Boro / Mount Fairy Rural Fire Services, Bungendore Rural Fire Services, 
Taylor’s Creek Fire Services. BCSF Founders have met with these Rural Fire Services. 
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11. Community Benefit Sharing Scheme 
The Founders and the Proponent feel strongly that those most impacted by the Project should 
share in its benefits.  While this is not a requirement of the NSW Department of Planning, 
Industry and Environment (DPIE) we feel it is important to recognise the impact the Project will 
have on the community and to continue to be a good neighbour.  The CBSS will ensure benefits 
are shared in a meaningful and equitable way with those most impacted by the Project as well 
as the wider community.   
 
Wherever possible recipients of the CBSS will be encouraged to spend the funds in town to 
ensure the money keeps circulating through the community, to address the challenges of 
landscape restoration, climate change, sustainable agricultural production, and community 
resilience. 
 
Based on a 350MW Project the CBSS will allow key stakeholders and the community to share 
up to $3.5m over the lifetime of the Project, depending on whether the funds are spent up front 
or over the Project lifetime. This will scale up or down depending on the size of the Project. 

12. Employment & Economic Opportunities  
The founders and the Proponent are committed to making sure the opportunities and revenue 
from the Project stay local.  To ensure these goals are met once the Project receives its 
Development Approval (DA), we will develop a specific communications and engagement 
strategy which more broadly will:  
 

● Work with the local job networks, Indigenous Job Network, Bungendore, Tarago and 
Queanbeyan Chambers of Commerce (or equivalent) to identify opportunities for local 
business involvement and local employment in the construction and operation of the 
Project and encourage potential employees, services and suppliers to sign up to the e-
news; 

● Identify opportunities for Indigenous participation and employment in the construction 
and operation of the Project and where appropriate develop an Indigenous Participation 
Strategy; 

● Encourage women to apply for roles on the Project; 
● Utilise the CBSS to share benefits to the wider community by encouraging local rural 

businesses to register as approved suppliers to the Project; 
● Hold an employment and business opportunities community networking meeting, prior to 

the construction phase, to discuss accommodation, jobs, cafes, services and to register 
those interested in participating; 

● Promote participating businesses on the website; and 
● Develop case studies and media releases promoting businesses and individuals working 

on the Project. 
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13. Indigenous Consultation & Engagement 
Strategy 

Weereewa / Lake Ngungara / Lake George is of cultural significance to the Ngunnawal/ 
Ngunawal, Ngambri and other First Nations people. The Founders of Blind Creek Solar Farm 
are committed to genuine engagement with the First Nations people and will:   
 

● Engage early with the relevant Indigenous communities to discuss opportunities to work 
together; 

● If the Project proceeds, the landholder is interested in working with local Indigenous 
groups to create a 2km2 cultural and heritage zone near the lake known in the EIS report 
as the Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone.  This will assist with the 
intergenerational transfer of cultural knowledge; 

● Work with Indigenous Elders to create capacity building in jobs of the future for the 
Ngunnawal/Ngunawal and Ngambri communities through employment, education, and 
training - priority jobs on the solar farm for Indigenous workers and university graduates. 

● Ensure consultation with Traditional Owners is consistent, culturally appropriate, and 
effective. 

 

14. Timeline, Communications activities & 
Implementation Plan  

A phased approach will guide the implementation of the Engagement Strategy throughout each 
of the key Project stages, as shown in Table 4 below. Each phase will require a tailored 
communication roll-out to communicate milestones and channels for input and feedback from 
the community. This will be expanded as the Project evolves. 

Table 4: Phases of the Engagement Strategy 

Phase No. Description 

One (Pre-SEARS) Introduce the Project team, Project size and location, explain the 
planning process for Major Projects, introduce the concept of the CBSS, launch 
website and 1800 number. 

Two  (Following issuance of the SEARS and during EIS preparation) Advise that the SEARS 
has been received by key local stakeholders, hold initial discussions regarding the 
CBSS. (During Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) preparation phase) Present the 
CBSS, update core stakeholders on Project studies, receive feedback.  Hold an open 
day, stakeholder meetings and site visits for key stakeholders prior to lodgement of EIS 
and DA application. 

Three (DA application and exhibition phase) Hold an open day during the Project’s exhibition 
period. 
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Four (Following granting of the DA) Keep stakeholders informed of what’s happening on the 
Project via the website. Pre-construction phase job strategy and construction briefing 
for stakeholders. 

Table 5: Phase One - Pre-SEARs  

Date Stakeholder
s 

Action Toolkit Status 

Mid-
November 
2020 

Wider 
community 
 
Stakeholder 
groups 1-4 
 
Key 
stakeholders 
including 
RFS, 
Council, 
Businesses. 

- Advise the community of the 
proposed Project and the 
process for NSW Major 
Projects. 

- Approach neighbours and 
stakeholders in anticipation of 
early December lodgement of 
scoping report 

- Visual mapping 
- Website 
- FAQs 
- environment / outputs 
- Info on jobs 
- Media releases 
- 1800 number 
- email  
- Presentations 

Complete 

Feb 2021 Stakeholder 
Groups 1-4 

Advise key stakeholders of 
publication of SEARS 

- Email / text 
- Website address 

Complete 

Table 6: Phase Two – Post SEARS – EIS Preparation 

Date Stakeholder Action Toolkit Status 

April-May 
2021 

Key 
Stakeholder 
Groups 1-4  
 
 

- On-site meetings for key stakeholder 
groups and discussion sessions. 

- Present CBSS to close neighbours 
and individual stakeholder groups to 
explain results of early studies and 
update proposed layout.  

- Seek feedback and input to the 
Project.  

- CBSS Presentations 
and Project update 

- Feedback and input 
mechanism 

- Visual mapping 
images 

 
 

Complete 

April - Dec Council  - Meeting with Council to discuss 
Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA) 

- CBSS presentation 
- Website 

Underway 

April - Dec Indigenous 
groups 

- Discussions with Indigenous groups 
to discuss opportunities for 
Indigenous communities to participate 
in the Project and CBSS for 
employment opportunities and cultural 
projects.  

- Continue discussions throughout the 
year.  

 Underway 

October 
2021  

Wider 
community 

- On-line Community Information 
Sessions  

- Project history 
- Environmental studies 

October 
2021  
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- Two online community information 
sessions during Covid lockdown to 
keep the community informed of 
progress and enable feedback 
opportunity.  

- Refocusing our farm 
- Agri Solar 
- Project elements 
- Application Process 
- Renewable energy 

prod 
- Visual images 
- CBSS 
- Job & local economy  
- Regen info 
- Biodiversity info 
- Tree planting info 
- Soil studies 
- Lamb production 
Carbon sequestration 

Dec 2021 New 
Councillors 

Council elections during December 
2021. Brief new Councillors on Project 
- Invite on site. 

All new Councillors have 
been emailed about the 
Project. 
 
 
Presentation with key 
details at end of March 
2022. 

Underway 

Nov – Dec 
2021 

Wider 
community 

- Community Open Days 
- Series of on-site open days to inform 

stakeholder groups and local 
community of project progress 

- Website 
- Posters detailing 

Project plus imagery 
of views from key 
viewpoints and 
location and layout 
maps.  

- Feedback form 
- E-news 
Media releases 

Complete 

Dec 2021 – 
Mar 2022 

Indigenous 
community 

- CBSS / Indigenous Cultural and 
Heritage Learning Zone. Continue 
discussions with Indigenous groups. 

- Phone calls 
- Site visit 
- Meetings 

Underway 

 

Table 7: Phase Three - Development Application & Exhibition Period 

Date Stakeholder Action Toolkit Status 

Expected 
Mar-Apr 
2022 

Stakeholder 
Groups 1-4 

- Email to advise we have submitted 
our EIS and how that process 
works.  

- Phone call or meeting to discuss 
project with anyone who requests 
further information  

- Email Not yet 
commenced 
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Expected 
Mar-Apr 
2022 

Wider community 
 
Council 
 
Other Key 
stakeholders 
 
Stakeholders 
Groups 1-4 
 
Indigenous 
Groups 
 
Local Business 
community  

- Community Open Day - Project information  
- Site location and 

layout 
- Environmental studies 
- Visual analysis 
- Proposed landscaping 
- Traffic and access 

information 
- Construction timeline 
- Job & local economy 

info 
- Regen info 
- Biodiversity info 
- Soil studies 
- Agri-solar information 
- Carbon sequestration  

Not yet 
commenced 

Expected 
Mar-Apr 
2022 

Wider community 
 
Council 
 
Key stakeholders 
 
Stakeholders 
Groups 1-4 
 
Indigenous 
Groups 
 
Local Business 
community  

- Media information - Results of 
studies  

- CBSS 
- Jobs, contractor and economic 

opportunities 
- Environmental benefits 

- Website 
- E-news 
- Media releases 

 

Througho
ut 2022 

Indigenous Elders - Continue discussions with 
Indigenous Elders regarding the 
Project and the CBSS funds for 
Indigenous Cultural and Heritage 
Learning Zone. 

- Phone calls 
- Meetings 
- Site visits 

Not yet 
commenced  

Througho
ut 2022 

Local businesses - Engage with Chamber of Commerce 
- Bungendore  

- - Queanbeyan business community 
- Tarago Progress Group 

- Email 
- Presentation 

Not yet 
commenced 

 

Table 8: Phase Four - Pre-construction and Construction   

Date Stakeholder Action Toolkit Status 

 Local 
businesses and 
regional 
business 
community 

- Briefing for locals interested in 
jobs on BCSF. 

- Visual mapping 
- Job database 
- Website 
- FAQs 

Not yet 
commenced 
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- environment / 
outputs 

- Info on jobs 
- Media releases 
- 1800 number 
- email  
- Presentations 

 Indigenous 
community  

- Advise Indigenous communities 
to register for potential job 
opportunities.  

- Phone calls / email 
/ Website address 

Not yet 
commenced 

 Local services, 
hotels, cafes, 
etc 

- Develop a list of local services 
interested in providing services 

- Specific page on 
website 

- E- news 
- Promote local 

services to BCSF 
construction team. 

Not yet 
commenced 

 Wider 
community 
 

- Develop Project timeline for 
local community  

 

- Media release in 
local paper 

- Website to 
include all 
construction info 
including 
complaints and 
feedback 
process, contact 
details and form. 

-  

Not yet 
commenced 

 Project briefing 
for local 
residences  
 

- Protocols for construction 
period.  

- How to report complaints and 
provide feedback.  

- Community 
meeting and e-
news to residents 

- 1800 number 
- Website to include 

all construction info 
including 
complaints and 
feedback process, 
contact details and 
form. 
 
 

Not yet 
commenced 

 Key 
stakeholders 
including RFS, 
Council 

- Arrange briefing if required  - Presentation Not yet 
commenced 
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15. Issue Management 
A set of project-specific issues and risks to maximising community engagement in the Project 
have been identified below in Table 9. These issues pose potential risks to the effective 
identification and mitigation of impacts important to the community and ultimately, to achieving 
social licence to operate from the community. Objections relating to solar projects have been 
researched and information relating to these concerns will be provided in presentations, via the 
website, media releases, newspaper advertisements and incorporated into other communication 
activities.  

Table 9:  Risks and strategies 

Issue Risks Strategies 

Covid-19  Community could be 
distracted by Covid 
concerns. 

Ensure important information regarding the 
Project relevant to   Stakeholder Groups 1-4 is 
communicated directly via phone or email.  
Ensure messages communicated with wider 
community are repeated and available via a range 
of channels. 

Covid-19 Lockdown prevents 
meaningful and timely 
interaction with community 
and key stakeholders. 

When necessary, adapt communications to utilise 
online communication tools such as zoom.  For 
onsite meetings or meetings at stakeholder 
residence ensure social distancing and Q code 
check in when required to ensure community feels 
safe.   Maintain access to online information via 
website and through local media outlet.  

The project may define 
/ overwhelm the 
locality.  

Potential to polarise the 
community. 
They may not feel that the 
project reflects their values. 
The scale of the project 
may overwhelm the existing 
local character.  
 

Early and easily accessible distribution of 
information about the project and its specific 
justification and benefits, particularly material 
about the role of solar energy in the country’s 
energy mix, the technology, and its impacts. 
Photomontages will be provided for visualisation 
to assist the understanding of the proposal and 
actual versus perceived impacts. 
Seek direct input into how the project may reflect 
the community’s ‘personality’ and values. How the 
benefits of the project may be spread to the local 
community.  
Clear communication of key environmental 
impacts and mitigation strategies of the project. 
Offer direct contact with the proposal’s Founders. 

Spread of 
misinformation / feel 
left out of engagement  

Rural residences can be 
difficult to contact and word 
of mouth travels very fast in 
small communities. 
Feel left out, disengaged, 
misinformed.  
 

Early direct communication to local community – 
adjacent landowners first, near neighbours 
second, then the wider community. 
Multiple means to identify all relevant residences 
undertaken – mapping, Council, engagement with 
other members of the community. It can be 
difficult to locate all residences and contact all 
landowners.  
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Issue Risks Strategies 

Lack of support for the 
project  
 

Lack of interest, leading to 
low levels of public support. 
Community could be 
against the project due to 
unaddressed concerns. 
 

Early and easily accessible distribution of 
information including but not limited to the 
project’s: 
• justification and benefits as well as 

community benefits; 
• environmental and social impacts and 

mitigation strategies; and 
• community relationship strategies. 
Create a clear and trusted communication 
channel exclusively for the community to provide 
comments. 
Make participation easy and effective so that 
everyone within the community is heard and their 
comments taken into consideration. 
Ensure all concerns are addressed and 
distributed; and informed when these are 
available for the community. 
Be creative – seek support for renewable energy 
by demonstrating how benefits can be contributed 
to the local and community level, including with 
special interest groups and local businesses.  

The approvals process 
can be long and 
complex. 
 

Perception that the process 
is too difficult to become 
involved in. 
Suspicion that input will not 
be valued. 
Overly technical information 
provided, use of jargon. 

Clearly illustrate approvals process. 
Clearly define opportunities for community input 
including what is required and when it is required. 
Communicate back, identifying where input has 
been used. 
Reinforce this at each relevant stage for 
community input – pre lodgement, during public 
exhibition etc. 
Key achievements will be identified early and 
celebrated. 

Distrust in 
environmental 
assessment process.  
 

Distrust of impact 
identification and mitigation 
strategies. 
 

Make participation easy and effective so that 
everyone within the community is heard and their 
comments taken into consideration. 
Provide a logical and/or evidence based plain 
English explanation on how impacts will be 
mitigated. 
Establish credentials of assessment team and 
owners of the development. Present these in the 
EIS and in newsletters etc. 
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Issue Risks Strategies 

Representative 
 

Risk of biased consultation, 
serving only the ‘squeaky 
wheel’. 
Sections of the community 
may be “overpowered” and 
may be marginalised. 

Ensure community consultation representative 
possess appropriate training and understands the 
execution of public forums.  This strategy is aimed 
to provide the community with a polite and 
outstanding social skills person representing the 
proposal. 
Ensure community is engaged in a polite and “at 
same level” manner; and in a forum that 
minimises risk of groups mismanagement or 
debate being side-tracked. 
Follow up with smaller groups where required. 
Use established social (and media) channels in 
distribution of materials, i.e. company website, 
newsletter, local newspaper or notice board, direct 
messaging, sport clubs. 

Unified message Differing messages may 
create confusion and 
mistrust. 

Create a clear and trusted communication 
channel exclusively for the community to provide 
comments. 
Prepare concise, detailed and direct messages in 
plain English that are clearly set out for use rather 
than reinventing it for each consultation activity.  

Unequal distribution of 
benefits 

Residents close to the 
development are likely to 
feel more strongly.  

Identification of stakeholder groups should reflect 
differences in perceived impacts.  

 

16. Monitoring and Evaluation 
To ensure the implementation of this Engagement Strategy is effective, and adapts as required 
to new information, the following review actions will be undertaken by the Proponent alongside 
the implementation activities. 

● The communications manager will review this plan regularly. 
● Keep an accurate record of all feedback from consultation activities and all 

correspondence with the community. 
● Monitor regularly and respond promptly to email and phone queries. 
● Monitor if the activities are reaching a diverse and representative section of the 

community. Subject to the monitoring results, consider if new activities need to be 
implemented. 

● Ensure that all project related information and updates have been shared with: 
○ the team developing the detailed project description; 
○ the team managing information channels including, social media, website, 

hotline, etc. 
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17. Complaints process 
A complaints process will be developed for the construction phase and in consideration of 
recommendations from publications by the National Wind Farm Commissioner. 



 

NGH Pty Ltd | 20-403 - Final v1  | D-XV 
 

D.3 Summary of activities and results 

 



 

NGH Pty Ltd |   | 1 

1. Consultation requirements 

The SEARs issued by DPIE for the Project require the Proponent to consult with relevant local, 
State or Commonwealth Government authorities, infrastructure and service providers, community 
groups, affected landowners, exploration licence holders, quarry operators and mineral title holders 
during the preparation of the EIS. In particular, detailed consultation with affected landowners 
surrounding the development and Queanbeyan-Palerang Regional Council (QPRC) is required. 
The EIS is required to describe the consultation, identify the issues raised, and explain how the 
issues have been addressed in the EIS. 

The Proponent has undertaken consultation with the local community during the planning of the 
Project, in line with the Australian Renewable Energy Agency’s (ARENA’s) Establishing the social 
licence to operate large scale solar facilities in Australia: insights from social research for industry 
(ARENA n.d.). Consultation activities were informed by The Social Impact Assessment Guidelines 
(2021), Beyond Public Meetings: Connecting community engagement with decision making 
(Twyford Consulting, 2007), Large Scale Solar Energy Guideline for State Significant Development 
(NSW Government, 2018) and Large-scale solar energy guideline for state significant development 
December 2018 (NSW Government, 2018). Although the Proponent is not bound by the SIA 
Guidelines issued by the DPIE for State Significant Project they were a guiding tool in considering 
the communications and social impacts.   The consultation process was coordinated using a 
Community Consultation Plan which is discussed below. 
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2. Summary of engagement  

As members of the local community, the Founders of BCSF have undertaken extensive 
consultation with their near neighbours and residents with a possible visual impact up to 7km.  This 
has included: 

- Face to face meetings and presentations 
- On site visits, presentations and discussion sessions  
- Emails, texts, telephone calls  
- BCSF project website 
- Dedicated freecall number 
- Dedicated email address 
- Media releases  
- Online Community Information Sessions  
- Open Days  
- Specific stakeholder group on site meetings and discussion sessions   

 

The interactions with each stakeholder group and their feedback are outlined below in tables and 
highlights the timing and scope of the interactions.  The BCSF website 
www.blindcreeksolarfarm.com.au was launched in December 2020 a month prior to receiving 
SEARs.  The website includes the following information: 

- Project overview 
- About BCSF  
- Approval Process  
- Study Area 
- Founder / Farmer statement 
- Agri-solar 
- Contact information  
- Benefits to local economy 
- Community consultation 
- Sharing the benefits 
- Glare & Reflection Executive Summary  
- News articles 
- FAQ 
- Event Register 

2.1 Summary of Information days held 
All stakeholder groups 1-4 have an open invitation to visit BCSF site to ensure they understand the 
location.  Individuals in stakeholder groups have the email address and contact information for the 
Founder / Landholder.  In addition, specific presentations and on-site visits have been organised 
for stakeholder groups to ensure they understand the Project, the site and the development 
application process.  
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Stakeholder Group Date 

Wider community and 
all stakeholder 
groups 

Online Community Information Sessions during Covid lockdown: 
2 x online community information sessions during Covid lockdown 10 and 
11 October 2021. 
 
Open Days: The initial open day on 13 November 2021 was washed out.  
The people who expressed interest to attend the Open Day were given 
three further opportunities to attend another Open Day on Nov 18, 19, and 
Dec 12. 

Stakeholder Group 1 On site meeting and discussion 10 Dec 2020 
On site meeting and discussion 14 April 2021 

Stakeholder Group 2 Presentation to Stakeholder Group 25 Nov 2020 
Presentation to Stakeholder Group 16 May 2021 

Stakeholder Group 3 Presentation to community on 23 November 2020 
On site visit and discussion session 29 May 2021 
On site visit and discussion session 3 December 2021 

Stakeholder Group 4 On site visit and discussion session 30 May 2021 

 

2.2 Summary of engagement with Indigenous community 
In addition to consultation undertaken with Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) in accordance 
with Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents (DECCW 2010) as 
part of the Archaeological and Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment the following consultation was 
carried out: (Names of Indigenous Representatives can be supplied) 

Date Activity 

7 April 2021 
- Nov 2021 

BCSF founder spoke with Buru Ngunnawal Elder to discuss BCSF and arrange a 
site visit.  Follow up emails were sent to discuss the potential for closing off a 2 km2 
area identified as having Indigenous heritage and creating an Indigenous Cultural 
and Heritage Learning Zone (ICHLZ) and Open Day to allow Indigenous Elders to 
educate Indigenous communities and the local community of Bungendore and 
school children about the area and to invite input and ideas into the project.  
 
The area is between the proposed edge of the solar farm and Weereewa / Lake 
Ngungara / Lake George.  This will provide access to the lake from the eastern 
shore for the first time in over 150 years for Indigenous peoples and for the wider 
community. 

Jul  2021 

 

The Founder engaged a local Indigenous man who grew up on the property to 
intern during the archaeological studies.  He has since worked on other 
archaeological digs in the region and has recorded the Welcome To Country for 
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Date Activity 

Oct 2021 the BCSF Project.  

22 July & 30 
July 2021 

Discussions with Yuin Representative about the Indigenous Cultural and Heritage 
Learning Zone.  

27 July 2021 Discussion with Didge Ngunnawal Representative regarding the Indigenous 
Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone. 

28 July 2021 BCSF Founder discussed with Thunderstone Elder regarding the Indigenous 
Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone.   

28 July 2021 Discussion with Ngambri Aboriginal Land Council Representative about BCSF site 
and potential Cultural Learning Zone. 

6 August 
2021 

Discussion with another Ngambri Aboriginal Land Council Representative about 
BCSF site and potential Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone. 

13 August 
2021 

Emailed Indigenous Elders inviting them to visit and discussion about cultural 
heritage and Indigenous jobs on BCSF. 

19 August 
2021 

Conversation with Buru Ngunnawal Elder about cultural history of the lake and 
inviting him to visit. 

18 October 
2021 

Conversation with Ngambri Aboriginal Land Council CEO about BCSF site and 
inviting further conversation and input to Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning 
Zone.  

9 November 
2021 

Emailed Ngambri Aboriginal Land Council CEO to follow up on conversation and 
invite her to visit BCSF.  

13 Dec 2021 BCSF Founder met Thunderstone Elder regarding the Indigenous Cultural and 
Heritage Learning Zone and other potential opportunities for Indigenous 
involvement on BCSF. 

 

2.3 Summary of engagement with wider Bungendore community 
Community Benefit Sharing Scheme (CBSS):  The wider Bungendore community is included in the 
CBSS via a Voluntary Planning Agreement payment to QPRC which is intended to provide 
$1,235,000 towards the construction of the new community swimming pool.  
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Date Activity 

16 Dec 
2020 

Media release published in local newspaper Regional Independent announcing local landholder solar Project and website, Freecall 
number, email address. Map of location of solar included in newspaper article. (5700 printed with copies distributed to outlying homes in 
region weekly) (See Attachment 1 ) 

29 Sept 
2021 

Media release and advertisement in Bungendore Regional Independent promoting online community information sessions and outlining 
information about glint and glare analysis. (See Attachment 2) 

29 Sept 
2021 

Advertisement in local newspaper Regional Independent  

promoting online community information sessions. (See Attachment 3) 

6 Oct 
2021 

Media release and advertisement in Bungendore Regional Independent promoting online community information sessions and outlining 
information about glint and glare analysis. (See Attachment 4 & 5) 

10 Oct 
2021 

17 attendees at the online community session. See feedback and responses below 

11 Oct 
2021 

10 attendees at the online community information session 

Wk 1 
Nov 

Flyer drop to 2000 residents promoting Open Day and how to find more information about BCSF. (See Attachment  6)  

 3 Nov ¼ page advertisement in Regional Independent promoting Open Day on 13 November (See Attachment  7) 

 6 Nov Online newsletter to subscribers to promote Open Day (See Attachment 8) 

 10 Nov ¼ page advertisement in Regional Independent promoting Open Day on 13 November (See Attachment 9) 

 13 Nov Open Day (on hold due to flooding). Email sent to all those who RSVP’d informing them as soon as the creek was open they could come 
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Date Activity 

and visit at a time to suit them the following week. 20 local residents expressed interest in attending the open day. 

19 & 20 
Nov & 
12 Dec 

Anyone who replied to say they would like to attend the Open Day on 13 Nov was invited to come 19, 20 Nov or 12 December.  Of the 20 
who RSVP’d they would like to attend the Open Day 21 people attended.  The others have an open invitation to come and see the site at a 
time to suit them. Information for Open Day included: 

- Refocusing Our farm For The Future 
- Solar Panels, Pasture & Lambs 
- The Project 
- Elements of the Project Agri-solar and battery storage, substation 
- Panel area and transmission lines 
- Impact Studies  
- Archaeology 
- Glare and reflection analysis 
- Bushfire Management 
- Planning Process 
- Environmental Benefits 
- Circular Economy 
- Local is our Priority 
- Community Consultation 
- Community Benefit Sharing Scheme 
- Visual Analysis images from 3 key areas  
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3. Results received 

3.1 Online Community Information Session  
During Covid lockdown two online community information sessions were held for the local 
community and stakeholder groups on 10 and 11 October. The online sessions were advertised in 
the local media via media release which ran over two weeks and two advertisements as well as 
emails to key stakeholder groups.  The results of a survey at the end of the session on 10 October 
showed:  I’m interested to know more about: 

 

- Agrisolar aspects of the Project     20.7% 
- Jobs and local economy             14.2% 
- Community Benefit Share Scheme     10.3% 
- Biodiversity studies                    10.3% 
- I have enough information         10.3% 
- Location and visual aspects        10.3% 
- Renewable energy                       6.8% 
- Glare                                            6.8% 
- Bushfires                             6.8% 
- Archaeology & heritage              3.45% 

 

3.2 Online Community Information Session Questions  
Following is a list of questions received during the Q&A sessions 10 and 11 October 2021 

1. Where is the Currandooley airstrip? 
2. Will development include a road upgrade to accommodate extra vehicles? 
3. Would security lighting include LEDs and on all night? 
4. Can you talk about the spacing of the panels and how that works with sheep? 
5. If approved, when do you anticipate commencement of construction and how long will it 

take? 
6. What will happen with CBSS payments if the Project goes bust? 
7. How much disturbance will there be in the panel area and will you account for the lost 

carbon? 
8. Can you share infrastructure with the wind farm? 
9. It sounds like an excellent positive Project.  Can you think of any reason why the gov would 

not approve it? 
10. Could this Project be impacted by RESs? 
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3.3 Comments post Q&A sessions 
Hello Osborne family. Thank you for your very impressive and informative presentation of your 
proposed solar farm. Our family have lived at … for 25 years and have been very happy here. 
Wishing you great success. (Bungendore).  

I thought that it was presented very professionally.  Everyone spoke really well and it flowed nicely. 
Each speaker and what they presented was well timed (ie, not too much or too little info) except 
the only thing I thought was a bit vague was the actual impact it will have ie, it’s a lot bigger project 
that I imagined and hard to fathom the proposed size of it.  I thought the length of the presentation 
was just right and having question time at the end was good.  Good luck with the proposal! 
����� 
(Bungendore resident) 

Great work team. Very informative and nicely run session. (Bungendore Resident)  

3.4 Comments received from Open Days 
An open day was widely promoted by mail box drop to local residents in town and in the outlying 
areas (2000 leaflets) plus two quarter page advertisements in the local paper and a subscriber 
newsletter (See Attachments 5,6,7, 8).  Because of on-going rain and creek flooding at the 
entrance to the property interested residents were asked to RSVP via the website or send an email 
so that we could advise them of flooding and arrange a separate suitable time to visit the site.  The 
initial Open Day on 13 November was flooded.  All residents who RSVP’d to say they were 
interested in attending were emailed and offered several alternative dates on 19, 20 November and 
12 December to attend an Open Day. In total, 21 residents attended the open day.  

Comments on feedback forms from Open Day 19 & 20 November 2021 and 12 December 2021 

1. B B. Lives 0-3km 

Strongly support.  Great benefits for the local community.  Sustainable.  Best of success for the 
future.  Brings hope for the planet. \ 

2. A.W. Lives 5-10km 

I most like the holistic approach you have taken that you have thought about and included all the 
things listed above. 

3. A.H. Lives 5-10km 

Think it is a good step towards a more sustainable future. 

4. A.C. Lives 5-10km 

No concerns.  I believe aspects of concern have been addressed eg. glare/visibility/archeology.  
Looks a great project.  Renewable energy and farming benefits.   

5. P.S.  Lives 10-15km 

No concerns. 

6. C.W. Lives 0-3km 

No concerns 

7. Anon. Lives 0-3km 

No concerns 

8. Took the form home and said he would post a response.  
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9. Anon. 5-10km 

No concerns. 

10. A.B. 5-10km 

No concerns 

11. A.B. Lives 3-5km 

No concerns great project 

12. J.M. 10-15km 

No concerns 

13. R.B. 3-5km 

All looks fantastic 

14. Anon 5-10km 

No concerns 

15. M.M. 10-15km 

No concerns 

16. J.A. Lives 10-15km 

No concerns 

17. E.A. Lives 10-15km 

No concerns 

18. Anon Lives 3-5km 

No concerns 

 

3.4.1 Aggregated feedback from respondents from the open day events was as 
follows: 

What did you most like about Blind Creek Solar Farm? (most preferred responses only) 

• 100% of respondents liked  the fact the Project was renewable energy 
• 93% of respondents liked the fact the Project was agri-solar 
• 87% of respondents liked the fact the Project was lead by local farmer 
• 69% of the respondents liked the Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone. 

Did you receive enough information today? 

• 100% of respondents said they had received enough information at the Open Day 

Do you have any concerns about Blind Creek Solar Farm? 

• 100% of respondents said No. 
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3.5 Engagement and Feedback from Stakeholder Groups 1-4 

3.5.1 Summary of engagement with Stakeholder Group 1 
Stakeholder Group 1 consists of the Project near neighbours.  This group includes four properties, 
two with residences and two landholdings 850m -3.7km from the Project footprint. These four 
properties we consider are likely to have the most impact.  The Founders have met with the 
property owners’ multiple times separately and as a group.  The neighbours have been on site to 
understand the location and scale.  The Founders have visited the properties of the neighbours 
multiple times. Community Benefit Sharing Scheme:  These neighbours are included in the CBSS 
which will provide funding to improve the sustainability and environmental outcomes on their 
property.  The Proponent has requested wherever possible the money is spent in town to ensure 
the benefits stay local.    

Consultation activities specific to this group to date include: 

Date Activity 

19 Nov 2020 -    Phone call to each neighbour to set up a time to meet and discuss 
Project.  

-    Explained the history of Capital Solar Farm which is an approved Project 
directly across the road or adjacent.  

-    Email sent to explain BCSF prior to meeting to explain the new Project 
location and CBSS. 

-    Founders / Landholders emphasised the option to participate in the CBSS 
and still oppose the Project. 

Nov - Dec 
2020 

-    Met each neighbour individually to discuss Project. 

-    Sought input to the Project 

-    Discuss concerns 

-    Explained approval process 

-    Discussed CBSS 

10 Dec 2020 Site visit of BCSF followed by PowerPoint presentation and explanation of CBSS.  

-    History of Project / Capital Solar 

-    Rationale for preferred new location 

-    Project details 

-    Initial visual images of Project 

-    Local economy benefits 

-    CBSS – how the fund will be split, proposed rules. 

-    Major projects approval process 

-    Q&A / discussion / concerns / input 
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Date Activity 

Feb 2021 Sent message to advise we had received SEARS and to advise of BCSF website 
address 

Nov 2021  Met individually with neighbours to show images from their house 

14 Apr 2021 Site meeting at BCSF followed by PowerPoint presentation, Q&A and discussion 
about CBSS and recapped on the Project plus input opportunity. 

-       Sharing the financial benefits with our near neighbours 

-       What we heard from you last time 

-      Government guidelines on governance of CBSS 

-      What we are proposing 

-      Transparency - what we are proposing for other stakeholders 

-      Proposed rules of CBSS 

-      Major projects approval process 

-      Questions / input / concerns 

  Meeting at neighbours' houses to take updated images from the site they 
selected 

June – Oct 
2021 

During Covid lockdown on-going discussions regarding CBSS 

Oct 2021 Phone call and email invite to two Open Days on zoom 

 6 Nov 2021 Online newsletter to subscribers to promote Open Day (See Attachment 8) 

Nov - Dec 
2021 

Meeting with individual landholders to show visual planning images and confirm 
details of CBSS. 
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Summary of feedback from Stakeholder Group 1 

    

Level of 

concern / 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
chapter 

HIGH 

Scale 

1. Stakeholders 
expressed concern 
about the scale of 
the Project. 

 

 

2. One stakeholder 
suggested the 
Project considers a 
more organic 
design for the 
panels.    

1. The size of BCSF has been substantially reduced since the initial conversations in 
November 2020 from 1200 hectares. The development footprint now comprises 
approximately 650 hectares, including a solar array footprint of approximately 325 hectares 
and 650 hectares of agricultural / sheep farming elements to the Project.  The scale of 
BCSF is required to enable the connection into the 330kv line, meet the economics of large-
scale renewable projects, and to address climate change.  

 

2. Organic design was supported by the Founders and will continue to be considered in the 
layout of the panels. 

Ch 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ch 1 

HIGH 

Visibility 

1. Stakeholders 
expressed concern 
about visibility.  

 

 

 

1. For the closest neighbours BCSF represents less visual impact than the original approved 
50MW Capital Solar Farm which would have been built directly across the road of two 
residences and visible to all. Existing vegetation substantially blocks views of the proposed 
development for two of the four landholdings.  The Proponent has provided visual images to 
articulate the area and visual impact of BCSF. The Founders have planted 8000 trees on 
the eastern side of the solar farm from 2018 - 2021 which will further mitigate visual 
impacts. Included in this stakeholder group is one residence 3.8km from the development 
footprint with an elevated view over the Project. BCSF has offered to plant trees along the 
length of Butmaroo Creek from Currandooley Road to Lake George / Weereewa / Lake 

Ch 8 

 

 

Ch 8 
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2. A neighbour raised 
concerns about the 
substation. 

Ngungara to partially mitigate visual impacts for this residence. 
2. The substation is located in an old pine forest and is hidden from visibility by existing 

topography that hides it from the community.   

MODERATE 

Glare 

1. Neighbour 
expressed concern 
about glare / glint / 
reflection 

1. SLR Consulting Glare Study indicated there was low potential for glare for surrounding 
residences during normal operations, which could be entirely eliminated via ‘tuning’ of the 
tracking algorithms. The Project also took care to examine the impact of various parking 
configurations during the construction period. The results of this will be used to develop 
protocols to reduce nuisance reflections during this period. The results from the glare 
analysis have been presented at the online community information sessions, reported in the 
local newspaper on two occasions, published on the website, provided link to residents, 
available at the Open Day. 

Ch 8 

MODERATE 

CBSS 

1. What is the 
motivation for 
CBSS? 

 

2. Concern if the solar 
farm changes 
hands or goes 
bankrupt what will 
happen to the 
CBSS payments. 

 

3. One neighbour 
asked why the 

1. The Founders believe the closest neighbours with a view of the Project should share in the 
financial benefits.  The CBSS is not intended to gag anyone.  If stakeholders accept funds 
from the Scheme they can still oppose the Project.  There was general support for the 
CBSS among this group.    

 

2. Blind Creek Solar Farm will adhere to the Guidance provided by the Government for wind 
farms to ensure agreements are effective and enforceable by law and comply with minimum 
standards and that the Proponent should bear all reasonable costs including the 
landowner’s costs for independent advice associated with entering into the 
agreement:https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/~/media/Files/DPE/Guidelines/wind-energy-
guideline-for-state-significant-wind-energy-development-2016-12.ashx   

 

3. The Founders / Proponent explained that it was a core value of the Project to include those 

Ch 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/%7E/media/Files/DPE/Guidelines/wind-energy-guideline-for-state-significant-wind-energy-development-2016-12.ashx
https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/%7E/media/Files/DPE/Guidelines/wind-energy-guideline-for-state-significant-wind-energy-development-2016-12.ashx
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Proponent was 
being so generous 
with the community 
when no other 
Project in the region 
offered to share 
benefits with their 
neighbours. 

4. One of the 
stakeholders asked 
if the local 
Bungendore 
Community 
Foundation could 
be included in the 
CBSS.  

with a view up to 6.5km in the financial benefits. Restated those beneficiaries of the CBSS 
can accept the money and still participate in the planning process.  

 

4. The Founders have suggested to another stakeholder group that if the any residents don’t 
want to participate in the CBSS then BCSF will donate their portion to the Bungendore 
Community Foundation.  

 

 

 

Ch 6 

LOW 

Climate 
Change 

1. One neighbour 
commented that 
projects like these 
are required to 
manage the risks of 
climate change.  

1. A 350MW solar farm will produce around 735,000 MWh per year – enough energy to power 
more than 124,000 houses.  This would reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 600,000 tonnes 
p.a which is equivalent to the pollution produced by almost 220,000 cars. 

Ch 2 
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3.5.2 Summary of engagement with Stakeholder Group 2 
This stakeholder group represents approximately 50 dwellings across a rural lifestyle estate. The 
closest house is 2.6km from the Project footprint. We consider all but two residences will be hidden 
by natural topography and vegetation. 

Community Benefit Sharing Scheme:  They are an important stakeholder group and as such the 
Proponent has included them in the CBSS to provide funding for an environmental or sustainability 
project on their community title which sits in the middle of the Estate.   The group is considering 
how the money will be spent and has suggested a possible water project to assist with drought 
mitigation or landscaping for their community green space.  The Founders have requested 
wherever possible the money is spent in town to ensure the benefits stay local.  The Estate 
Committee has been advised they can accept the funds and still participate in the planning process 
if they wish.

 

 Consultation activities specific to this group include: 

Date Activity 

16 Nov 2020 Phone call to introduce the Project to Estate Executive Committee members. 

25 Nov 2020 PowerPoint presentation to Residential Estate Executive Committee.  Committee 
also invited residents from the north end of the Estate.  Presentation followed by 
Q&A.  Presentation included: 

-    Introducing team 

-    History of the Project including Capital Solar 

-    Rationale for referred new location 

-    Study area 

-    Project details 

-    Initial visual analysis 

-    Community Benefit Sharing Scheme including the opportunity to accept 
payment and still oppose the Project 

-    Fat lamb production under panels 

-    Farming activity 

-    Environmental benefits 

-       Approval process 

-      Community consultation 

-      Q&A 

 

13 Feb 2021 Advise Executive Committee of SEARS and website address for BCSF 

12 May 2021 Took photos of site from a house on southern end with a possible visual impact 
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Date Activity 

16 May 2021 All interested residents were invited by the Executive Committee to a presentation 
by the BCSF team at the Estate community hall with updated information followed 
by Q&A. 12 residents attended.  PowerPoint presentation to the residents. Aims of 
meeting were: 

1.  Recap on Project – including What we heard from you at the last meeting. 

2.  Develop ideas for investment in the community – share the financial 
benefits.  

PowerPoint presentation included: 

-    History of Project 

-    Preferred location 

-    Project details 

-    What we heard last time from you 

-    Sharing the financial benefits 

-    Proposed rules of CBSS 

-    Guidance from the government on CBSS 

-    Project progress 

-    Construction and the local economy 

-    Approval process 

-     Q&A  

16 May 2021 One resident requested a site visit to gauge the view from his house which was 
done straight after the above meeting. 

12 May 2021 Community benefit sharing discussions held up by Covid lockdown. 

21 May 2021 Provided updated information about the Project and CBSS for AGM plus 
information about governance of CBSS and glare study 

7 Oct 2021 Sent invite to Executive Committee to advise residents of online community 
information sessions. Committee advised they would forward it to residents. 

10 Oct 2021 Online community information session. Two residents from the Estate attended. 

11 Oct 2021 Online community information session 

6 Nov 2021 Online newsletter to subscribers to promote Open Day 

 8 Nov 2021 
 Discussion with Estate Committee members re Open Day and CBSS. Committee 
member emailed all residents about Open Day. 

13 Nov 2021 
Open Day - on hold due to rain.  Residents advised as soon as the creek goes 
down we would let them know and they could visit at a time to suit them.  
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Date Activity 

19 & 20 Nov 
& 12 Dec 
2021 

Open Days. Anyone who replied to say they would like to attend the Open Day was 
invited to come to a further three dates.  Of the 20 who RSVP’d they would like to 
attend the Open Day 21 people attended.  The others have an open invitation to 
come and see the site at a time to suit them.  

 

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

 

29 Nov 2021 On site meeting with a resident who will have a broken view of the Project to show 
location and visual images from his property.  Resident said he supports the 
Project.   
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3.5.3 Summary of feedback from Stakeholder Group 2 

Level of 

concern / 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
chapter 

MEDIUM 

Visibility 

1. One of the 
residents asked if 
the Proponent 
could visit their 
house to assess 
visibility.  

1. This occurred immediately after the 
presentation to the residents on 16 
May. The resident was told they 
would be shown the photomontage 
taken from adjacent property when 
available. The resident was 
informed that of the 22 residents 
within view of the Project only they 
and the adjacent property will get a 
view of the Project because of 
existing vegetation at Estate. 

Ch 8 

LOW 

CBSS 

1. At meetings 
attended by the 
Proponent there 
was general 
support from the 
Estate Community 
for the CBSS.    

 

  

1. The Executive is considering ideas 
for a community project.   

Ch 6 

LOW 

Climate change 

1. Will the Project 
help with climate 
change and 
contribute to the 
end of coal? 

1. Yes.  A 350MW solar farm will 
produce around 735,000 MWh per 
year – enough energy to power 
more than 124,000 houses.  This 
would reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions by 600,000 tonnes p.a 
which is equivalent to the pollution 
produced by almost 220,000 cars. 

  

Ch 2 

LOW 

Bushfires 

1. Is there any 
concern around 
bushfires? 
 

2. How will the grass 
be managed? 

1. All local fire brigades have been 
consulted. A comprehensive fire 
management plan will be provided 
as part of the DA.  Local Fire 
Brigades will be inducted onto the 
site pre operation.  

 

2. Rotational grazing sheep through 

Ch 9 

 

 

 

Ch 9 
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Level of 

concern / 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
chapter 

the Project will be used to manage 
the grass. 

  

LOW 

Ownership 

1. Will the Project be 
sold to a foreign 
company and if so 
one resident 
expressed concern 
about foreign 
ownership. 

1. We are looking for a partner with 
aligned values.  A Project of this 
size will require a partner to 
develop.  If that partner is foreign 
company it will have to be approved 
by the Foreign Investment Review 
Board. 

Not 
addressed 

LOW 

Communication 

1. Feedback from 
Executive 
The information 
you provided will 
be great to 
provide at the 
meeting. 

 

  

  

Ch 6 

LOW 

Visual analysis 

1. Resident with a 
view of Project said 
he would like to 
see visual images 

1. Resident said he supports the 
Project.  

Ch 8 

 

  



 

NGH Pty Ltd |   | 20 

 

3.5.4 Summary of engagement with Stakeholder Group 3 
This group includes 18 residences on the western side of Weereewa / Lake Ngungara / Lake 
George.  Some of the residences are hidden from the Project by existing landscaping and the 
direction of their house and we consider it is likely that some residences will have a direct, low view 
of the Project across the valley from 5km - 7km from the Project footprint.  They are an important 
group and have provided valuable feedback.  There are 16 stakeholder dwellings in this category.  
The Proponent has met with them as a group and as individuals to listen to their concerns, discuss 
visual imagery, and they have been invited on-site a number of times to ensure they understand 
the location and scale of the Project.  

Community Benefit Sharing Scheme:  This group is included in CBSS and the Founders suggested 
utilising the funds for local environmental regeneration projects, bushfire management or 
environmental conservation of the Lake.  Having investigated the potential for a community project 
the group decided that it wasn’t possible owing to much of the land being held by the Crown and 
that the funds should be allocated to individuals for environmental projects on their own land. 
BCSF is still working with this group to determine the allocation of the fund.  Recipients of funds 
have been advised they can accept the funds and still participate in the planning process.  

Note: Two stakeholders (R77 & R84) were identified after the consultation process shown below 
was undertaken (These two are included in the 18 identified in the first para). Both receivers are 
contemplated in the visual and glare studies. The Founders are currently working with these 
residences to ensure they understand the location, Project details and the Planning Process. Both 
stakeholders will be considered in the CBSS.
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Consultation activities specific to this group include: 

Date Activity 

19 Nov 2020 Phone calls and texts to introduce Project and invite to a presentation and 
information session at the home of a resident. 

23-Nov Two hour meeting including a PowerPoint presentation to this community followed 
by lengthy discussion / Q&A. Presentation included: 

- History of the Project 
- Location 
- Study size 
- Community consultation 
- Development application process 
- Early-stage photo montages 
- Planning Process 
- Community Benefit Share Scheme including the opportunity to participate in 

the CBSS and still oppose the Project 
- Glare and reflection, 
- Studies required for DA 

13-Feb Advise SEARS and website address for BCSF and that Proponent will have a 
follow up meeting in late March when Proponent has a better idea of Project layout. 

21-Apr Invitation to site visit on 30 May for this stakeholder group to make a site visit, 
presentation on progress and CBSS presentation. 

April Series of messages and phone calls to arrange photo montage images with 
several residents in this stakeholder group.  

29-May Reminder re site visit and CBSS site meeting and presentation 30 May 

30-May Representatives from 8 residences (12 people) attended site visit and PowerPoint 
presentation to this community followed by discussion and Q&A, input opportunity. 
Include details: 

- Recap CBSS - including beneficiaries, intent, governance. 
- What we’ve heard from you so far 
- History of the Project 
- The Project 
- Map location / study area 
- Project Progress 
- Construction and local economy 
- Approval process 
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Date Activity 

- Q&A / input session 

12-Aug-21 Glare Executive Summary provided on the BCSF website and passed onto this 
community. 

29-Jun-21 Information about Project and CBSS for this stakeholder group plus information 
about governance and information about the development application process.  

7-Oct-21 Sent invite to online community information sessions. 

10-Oct-21 Online community information session 

11-Oct-21 Online community information session 

Wk starting 

1 Nov 2021 

Flyer drop to these residents promoting Open Day and how to find more 
information. (SEE Attachment) 

 6 Nov 2021 Online newsletter to subscribers to promote Open Day 

9 Nov 2021 Email to this stakeholder group re CBSS and reminder about Open Day 

13 Nov 2021  Open Day (on hold due to flooding).  Email sent to all those who RSVP’d informing 
them as soon as the creek was open they could come and visit at a time to suit 
them the following week.  

14 Nov 2021 Emailed CBSS coordinator to answer questions prior to their community meeting 
relating to CBSS governance and to reiterate residents can participate in the CBSS 
and still participate in the planning process. 

19 Nov 2021 Followed up CBSS coordinator to see if there were any questions and to invite the 
group to come for another site visit on 28 Nov (cancelled due to flooding) 
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Date Activity 

19 & 20 Nov 
& 12 Dec 
2021 

- Open Days.  Anyone who replied to say they would like to attend the Open 
Day on 13 Nov was then invited to come 19, 20 Nov and 12 Dec.  Of the 20 
who RSVP’d they would like to attend the Open Day 21 people attended.  
The others have an open invitation to come and see the site at a time to 
suit them. 

  Information for Open Day included: 

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

 

20 Nov 2021 Received list of questions from the CBSS coordinator from their resident’s meeting.  

24 Nov 2021 Postponed site visit until 3 December because of flooding.  Proposed all questions 
could be addressed at the site meeting.   

27 Nov 2021 Phoned Stakeholder Group 3 residents to discuss concerns and invited them to a 
site meeting on 3 Dec followed by discussion about any concerns and invited them 
to a site meeting and discussion session on Friday 3 Dec 

29 Nov 2021 Emailed all Stakeholder Group 3 residents to confirm details for site meeting and 
discussion on site on 3 December or if they weren’t able to come or weren’t 
comfortable with group meetings, an open invitation over the following two weeks 
to come on-site and discuss any concerns they have with the Project. 
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Date Activity 

3 Dec 2021 8 residents from Stakeholder Group 3 attended the on-site meeting with display 
boards showing Project location and layout.  Two hour meeting on site to discuss 
concerns.  Display information included: 

 

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

 

During discussions two residents asked if we would consider removing a section of 
panels from an elevated zone.  We agreed to consider removing panels. 

During discussions a resident asked for us to consider planting trees on the 
northern border.  We agreed to plant trees in this section.  

 

20 Dec 2021 Detailed reply sent to group to respond to concerns raised in their resident’s 
meeting and to inform residents of questions raised at the on-site meeting at BCSF 
on 3 December including map outlining distances from the Project to a range of 
residences.  Unable to provide full glare report as requested as the report needed 
extensive updating and amending to accommodate the changes to the Project 
footprint. 
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3.5.5 Summary of feedback from Stakeholder Group 3 

Level of concern/ 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
Chapter 

HIGH 

Location, scale, 
visibility 

1. Stakeholder Group 3 
expressed it was difficult to 
know how they felt about 
the Project without knowing 
the size and location.  

 

 

2. Concern about visibility. 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Maximum height of the 
panels when they are at 
maximum tilt.  Is it 4m as 
noted in the scoping study. 

 

4. Request for a site plan 
showing location to 
stakeholder group 3 
residential sites. 

 

5. A resident suggested 
planting trees along the 
western edge of the Project.  
Another resident asked for 
trees to be planted on the 
northern corner. 

 
 

6. Already looking at a wind 
farm and sand mines. 
 
 
 
 

1. BCSF held a community meeting for Stakeholder Group 3 on 23.11.20 to introduce the Project, location, studies, etc.  Stakeholder Group 3 were 
invited to site visit on 30.5.21 followed by a discussion and Q&A session for Stakeholder Group 3.  This group has been invited to attend two 
online community information sessions during Covid-19 lockdown and the Open Day 13 November.  Following concerns raised by some residents 
at a Stakeholder Group 3 community meeting on 14 Nov BCSF contacted residents to invite them to a follow up meeting on site on 3.12.21.  All 
residents have been told they are welcome to visit the site whenever it suits them.  A map outlining approximately distances to BCSF from a range 
of houses was provided to Stakeholder Group 3 in Dec 2021. 

 

2. BCSF is situated in the low, flat country 5 - 7km from Stakeholder Group 3. The size of BCSF has been substantially reduced since the initial 
conversations in November 2020 from 1200 hectares. It now comprises approximately 650 hectares with the solar panels sitting on top of  approx 
325 hectares and 650 hectares of agricultural / sheep farming elements to the Project.  The Proponent has provided visual images to articulate the 
area and visual impact of BCSF and has offered to plant trees along the length of Butmaroo Creek from Currandooley Road to Lake George / 
Weereewa / Lake Ngungara to partially mitigate visual impacts. At a meeting on 3 December 2020 BCSF agreed to remove a section of more 
elevated panels following a request from two residents. At a meeting on 3 December 2020 BCSF agreed to plant trees to obscure panels on a 
northern section of the Project following a request from 2 residents. 

 

3. There have been improvements to solar panel technology. We will now be seeking to install what is called 2P configuration, which is two panels 
attached end to end to the trackers resulting in 5m height from the ground at maximum tilt. At the moment there isn't a construction company in 
Australia that will build with the 2P so we are hoping that will change by the construction date if the Project is approved.  If we are unable to build 
the 2P we will proceed with the 1P which has a height of 4 metres at maximum tilt as nominated at the first meeting. 

 

4. A proposed study area site map was provided to residents at meeting 23 Nov 2020, a site meeting was provided at on site meeting 30 May 2021, 
a refined Project layout map was provided to residents at on site meeting 3 December, a location meeting showing the approx distance from a 
range of houses to the closest point of the BCSF Project site was emailed to residents on 20 December 2021. 

 

5. Both requests for tree planting have been agreed to by the Founder. The Proponent has provided visual images to articulate the effect of tree 
planting along the length of Butmaroo Creek from Currandooley Road to Lake George / Weereewa / Lake Ngungara which significantly mitigates 
visual impacts.  

 

6. BCSF Project will have low visibility in the region and distant views (5-7+km from the other side of the lake). Whilst we acknowledge Stakeholder 
Group 3 does not want to see the Project, we believe the Butmaroo Creek and additional tree planting will have a big impact on the landscape for 
Stakeholder Group 3. The Project is situated between 5 and 7km from Stakeholder Group 3. The Project area has been heavily farmed for 170 
years and includes an old sand mine and is naturally cleared.  The most important consideration for solar farm siting is proximity to strong parts of 
the electricity transmission network, and the population centres they are designed to serve. It is significantly more challenging to develop a solar 
farm in remote, outback locations due to the very high costs associated with transmission line extensions and the energy losses that occur when 
electricity is transported over longer distances to consumers. Other key features that solar farm proponents seek in a suitable site are flat or gently 
sloping land where impacts on native vegetation and cultural heritage can be minimised. This is most often land which has been previously 
cleared for farming purposes. 

 

Ch 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Ch 8 

 

 

 

 

 

Ch 4 

 

 

 

Ch 8 

 

 

 

Ch 8 

 

 

 

Ch 8 
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Level of concern/ 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
Chapter 

 
7. Fear the project will expand 

over time.  

  

 

7. The BCSF Founding farmer acknowledges he is only in control of his own land and is not able to control what other people in the valley will do. 
He has committed to not build the 9 approved turbines on the BCSF site and the approved Capital Solar Farm on the eastern side of his 
property if BCSF proceeds. The solar farm cannot expand on his land because of the constraints identified in the EIS studies. Studies 
conducted by BCSF show the grid is a limiting factor – and our preliminary grid studies indicate that the 330 kv line that goes across the land will 
be close to capacity if this solar farm connects.  

 

Ch 8 

 

 

 

HIGH 

 

Glare 

1. Stakeholders expressed 
concern about glare / glint 
/ reflection. 

1. SLR Consulting Glare Study indicated there was low potential for glare for surrounding residences during normal operations, which could be 
entirely eliminated via ‘tuning’ of the tracking algorithms. The Project also took care to examine the impact of various parking configurations 
during the construction period. The results of this will be used to develop protocols to reduce nuisance reflections during this period. The results 
from the glare analysis have been presented at the online community information sessions, reported in the local newspaper on two occasions, 
published on the website, provided link to residents, available at the Open Day. 

Ch 8 

HIGH 

 

Lake George / Lake 
Ngungarra / Weereewa 

1. Sacred, significant natural 
environment that should be 
preserved as such. 

 

 

 

2. BCSF would make the lake 
look industrial. 

1. The Founders share concerns about the natural world and the importance of Weereewa / Lake Ngungara / Lake George being preserved.  This 
particular area has been heavily farmed and sand mined. The most interesting part of this Project for the Founders has been learning more 
about the Indigenous heritage on their farm which has identified what needs protecting and how the land was shaped. Significantly the 
Indigenous studies have identified areas where there is archaeological heritage including stone flints.  If the Project proceeds it will include an 
area of approximately 200ha hectares or 2km2 on the edge of the lake which will be preserved for what the Founders are hoping will become an 
Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone. The Founders also explained the economics of large-scale renewable Projects requiring a 
certain size to be viable. 

 

2. The western edge of the solar farm has a buffer that varies between approximately 600m and 1.3km from the edge of Lake George / 
Weereewa/Lake Ngungara. The Indigenous Cultural and Heritage Learning Zone is between the lake and BCSF. 

 

Ch 8 

 

 

 

 

Ch 8 

HIGH 

 

Land values 

1. Concerns over land values 1. This is a common question amongst communities where renewable energy projects are proposed. Since the neighbouring Capital wind farm 
was built the Valuer General has assessed the BCSF site land value to have increased 60%. Studies into the potential impact of wind farm 
developments on property prices have been undertaken both in Australia and overseas.  A study by the NSW Valuer-General (2009) concluded 
that there is no correlation between wind farms and long-term property prices. 

Ch9 

 

HIGH 

 

CBSS 

1. One resident raised issues 
around governance and 
administration of community 
trust for the CBSS. 

 

2. Inadequate compensation to 
residents considering the 
likely income of the solar 
farm were it to proceed.  

 

3. Would accepting the offer 
be interpreted by the NSW 
government as tacit consent 
to the Project?  

1. Agreed with the stakeholder that the administration and governance would need to be managed and that her skills would be invaluable in 
ensuring the arrangements met the requirements of a Community Trust Fund.  Proponent has offered to the group to pay for the legal costs of 
establishing a community Fund. 
 

2. The Project Founders of BCSF want to be as fair as possible and share the financial benefits. It is not attempting to be compensation, but rather 
a recognition that the community in vicinity of the Project with a view is important to us and we would like to share the financial benefits of this 
project with you.  
 
 

3. The Project Founder will inform The NSW Department of Planning, Infrastructure and Environment via the EIS that not everyone who 
participates in the CBSS supports the Project.   

 

 

 

Ch 6 

 

 

 

Ch 6 
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Level of concern/ 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
Chapter 

MEDIUM 

 

EIS 

1. When will you submit the 
EIS to the NSW Department 
of Industry and Planning? 

 

2. Will the community see it 
beforehand? 

1. Advised our plan was to submit before the end of January 2022. 

 

 

 

2. The EIS will not be available to see before lodgement.  

 

 

 

 

MEDIUM 

 

Agricultural Farmland 

1. Concern about the loss of 
productive farmland. 

1. The Office of Environment and Heritage soil classification Land and Soil Capability (LSC) has assessed 6.6% of the land to be a classification of 
5 (Moderate-low Capability Land) and 93.4% of the land to be classification 6 (Low Capability Land). These soil studies show this is light sandy 
country with very little organic content that has been heavily farmed for over 150 years.  The solar farm is sited on low grade sandy soils - next 
to an operating sand mine - in fact part of it is an old sand mine. The solar array area is approximately 650 hectares. The panels themselves will 
only cover approximately 325 hectares with generous spacing in between to allow for what we are calling agri-solar. Sheep will graze on the 
whole of the 650 hectares. By carrying out our farming activities using the principles of regenerative agriculture the landholder can restore 
grazing land and rebuild biodiversity and soil health at the same time as increasing productivity and sustainability. Sheep and solar make a 
perfect combination because the sheep get protection from the wind, rain and sun from the panels, and the grass or pasture under the panels 
help keep the panels at the optimum temperature to maximise electricity production.  

Chs 2 
&9  

LOW 

Size of substation 

1. What is the size of the 
substation? 

1. The substation is approximately 6 hectares and is hidden in an old pine forest out of view of the community.  Ch 8 

LOW  

Renewable Energy 
Zones 

1. How does the solar farm 
align with the proposed 
NSW renewable energy 
zones? 

1. The BCSF site may be considered to be within the Illawarra zone. Ch 2 

LOW 

Trig Station 

1. Concern about trig station 1. Protection for the trig station will be enhanced.  The archived trig station currently sits in the paddock and has no protection from livestock or 
machinery.  If the solar farm is constructed it will be protected by a steel fence. 

Ch 9 

LOW 

Energy Supply 

1. One resident raised 
concerns about marginal 
loss factors being an issue 
with solar projects out in 
Dubbo. 

 

2. Another resident asked 
about the energy market 
and how this Project fits in 
and how many houses it 
will power. Wanted to 
know which way the 
panels face; Interested in 
how likely it was to be built 

1. Losses from projects located a long way from consumption can be material. Dubbo is a good example of this. This project is located on a 
transmission system electrically close to Canberra, Wollongong and Sydney, which combined are a large proportion of consumption in NSW. 
This means losses between the project and the consumers are very small (approximately 4%). Additionally, the project is electrically close to 
Snowy 2.0 which will be a major consumer of electricity during its charging phase (pumping water up to higher reservoirs), which again tends to 
lower losses. 

 

2. The project is expected to power the equivalent of 125,000 homes, which is considerably larger than Canberra (approximately 50,000 homes). 
Renewables like Blind Creek Solar Farm can, if located in the right place and are cost efficient, compete on the open market without subsidy. 
Federal Government policy has been very important, in the form of the Renewable Energy Target, and in the financing support from ARENA 
and the CEFC. These initiatives had been the catalyst for industry establishment and scale up but are no longer vital. State Government policy 
in the form of the NSW Electricity Infrastructure 

 

Ch 2 
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Level of concern/ 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
Chapter 

seeing as the federal 
government is only 
interested in gas projects. 

 

 

 

 

LOW 

Transparency 

1. Inadequate transparency 
and detail in the information 
provided. 

1. The Founders held a Stakeholder Group 3 meeting in November 2020 a month before requesting SEARS.  At the initial two hour Stakeholder 
Group 3 meeting held at the home of a Stakeholder Group 3 it was explained that the area for BCSF studies was much larger than the Project 
required and would shrink as the studies identified constraints for the Project. The BCSF website, email address and freecall were launched in 
December 2020 to ensure there was information as best we knew available for the community.   This stakeholder group has had an open 
invitation to visit the site and have the personal email address and phone number of the Founding landholder.  They have also been invited to 
two on-site Stakeholder Group 3 specific site visits and discussion sessions, open day, two online community information sessions  

Ch 6 
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3.5.6 Summary of engagement with Stakeholder Group 4 
This group of 16 residents live on two specific roads on top of the escarpment overlooking the wider valley and Lake George / Weereewa / Lake 
Ngungara and could have varying degrees of visibility of the Project ranging from minimal to expansive from a distance of 6 - 7km from the Project 
footprint.   

Community Benefit Sharing Scheme: This is an important stakeholder group and those properties on these two roads with a likely potential for a 
visual impact from the Project have been included in the CBSS.  The group was unable to agree on a community project for the fund.  BCSF will 
provide funding to improve the sustainability and environmental outcomes on their property.  The Proponent has requested wherever possible the 
money is spent in town to ensure the benefits stay local.   The recipients are aware they can accept the funds and still participate in the planning 
process.  

Note: one stakeholder (details can be provided) is reported by neighbours as being too unwell to contact. One of the other stakeholders in this group, 
who has a personal relationship, committed during 2021 to engage with this stakeholder on BCSF’s behalf. 

Consultation activities specific to this group to date included: 

Date Activity 

Nov- Dec 
2020 

Introduce Project + seek additional contacts, site meetings in person to assess the view of Project and explain the Project. 

13-Feb 2021 Advise SEARS and website address for BCSF and that Proponent will have a follow up meeting in late March when the Proponent 
has a better idea of Project layout. 

29-May 2021 Representatives from 6 residences attended (11 people) a site visit followed by PowerPoint presentation, Q&A and CBSS meeting at 
BCSF. Presentation aims: 

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

Mid Jul 2021 Arrange meeting to determine eligibility for CBSS 

Mid Jul 2021 Founder met residents at their houses to determine eligibility for CBSS and to provide an update to the Project. 

12 Aug 2021 Email confirming inclusion in CBSS and link to glare report. 

7 Oct 2021 Sent invite to residents about online community information sessions, update on Project and changes to CBSS to an individual 
payment 

10 Oct 2021 Online community information session 

11 Oct 2021 Online community information session 

Wk 1 Nov 
2021 

Flyer drop to residents promoting Open Day and how to find more information.  (See Attachment) 

 6 Nov 2021 Online newsletter to subscribers to promote Open Day 

 13 Nov 
2021 

 Open Day (on hold due to flooding). Email sent to all those who RSVP’d informing them as soon as the creek was open, they could 
come and visit at a time to suit them the following week.  

19/20 Nov, 
12 Dec 2021 

Open Days: Anyone who replied to say they would like to attend the Open Day on 13 Nov was invited to come 19, 20 Nov and 12 
Dec.  Of the 20 who RSVP’d they would like to attend the Open Day 10 people attended.  The others have an open invitation to come 
and see the site at a time to suit them.  

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
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3.5.7 Summary of feedback from Stakeholder Group 4 

Level of 

concern / 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
chapter 

HIGH 

Scale 

1. A portion of 
stakeholders expressed 
concern about the scale 
of the Project.  

 

 

1. The size of BCSF has been substantially reduced since the initial conversations in 
November 2020 from 1200 hectares. The development footprint now comprises 
approximately 650 hectares, including a solar array footprint of approx 325 hectares and 
650 hectares of agricultural / sheep farming elements to the Project.  The scale of BCSF is 
required to enable the connection into the 330 kv line, meet the economics of large-scale 
renewable projects, and to address climate change.  

Ch 3 

HIGH 

Glare 

1. Concern about glare / 
glint / reflection 

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
analysis have been presented at the online community information sessions, reported in 
the local newspaper on two occasions, published on the website, provided link to residents, 
available at the Open Day. 

Ch 8 

HIGH 

Visibility 

1. Concern about visibility. 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Already looking at wind 

1. The Project lies in the low, flat country 6km - 7km from these residences on the 
escarpment. The Proponent acknowledges approximately 5 houses from this stakeholder 
group will have an expansive view of the Project and 9 houses will have a broken or partial 
view of the Project.  The proponent has provided visual images to articulate the area of the 
solar farm and has offered to plant trees along the length of Butmaroo Creek from 
Currandooley road to Lake George / Weereewa / Lake Ngungara to partially mitigate visual 
impact for this Stakeholder group. 

 

Ch 8 
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Level of 

concern / 
interest 

Detail Response EIS 
chapter 

farm and sand mines. 

  

 

2. The proposed BCSF site sits 6 - 7km from the escarpment between the Bungendore Sands 
sand quarry and Capital wind farm.  If built BCSF will contribute 735000 MWh per year of 
clean energy and contribute towards the NSW Government’s commitment to cut emissions 
by 50% by 2030.  

 

 

 

Ch 8 

MEDIUM 

CBSS 

1. Following 
communication 
between residents in 
stakeholder Group 4 re 
CBSS this community 
requested payments to 
individuals rather than a 
group project. 

  

2. One non-resident who 
attended a site meeting 
with a resident 
commented that the 
CBSS was the best 
community engagement 
he had seen in all his 
years as an architect 
dealing with Councils. 

1. Suggestion regarding individual payments was accepted by the Proponent.  These 
neighbours are included in the CBSS which will provide funding to improve the 
sustainability and environmental outcomes on their properties.  The Proponent has 
requested wherever possible the money is spent in town to ensure the benefits stay local.   
Residents aware they can accept the CBSS payment and still participate in the Planning 
Process for BCSF.  
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3.5.8 Summary of engagement with Agencies, Proximity Stakeholders, Business community and Local groups 
 

Stakeholder Method Purpose Outcome 

Proximity stakeholders 
includes those neighbours and 
those living close to the 
Project considered unlikely to 
have a view.   

Phone call and 
meeting 

They were contacted in November 2020 
before SEARS was issued to inform them 
about the Project and to explain the 
location, the Project details and to provide 
an opportunity for feedback.   

Generally supportive.  Asked to be kept 
informed.   

Cottage tenant closest to 
BCSF on landholders’ 
property. 

Telephone, meeting, 
Online community 
information session, 
open day.  

To ensure the tenant fully understands 
project size and location and impacts. 

Have agreed to install double glazed windows to 
the cottage if noise is an issue. Also agreed to 
plant screening along the southern side of the 
cottage.  

Queanbeyan Palerang 
Councillors 16-19 Nov 2020 

Emailed Councillors To introduce BCSF and offered to meet 
on site or in their office. 

Councillors asked to be kept informed.  

Queanbeyan Palerang Council 
10 Dec 2020 

Meeting and 
presentation to QPRC 
staff 

Present Project and discuss any concerns 
and get input how BCSF should progress 
discussions with Council. 

Plan for ongoing dialogue. 

Queanbeyan Palerang Council 
27 May 2021 

Founders presented 
to QPRC staff 

  

Queanbeyan Palerang Council 
28 July 2021 

Presentation at 
monthly Full Council 
meeting 

Give an overview of the Project and 
outline the VPA 

A recommendation to agree in principle with a 
planning agreement based on the BCSF 
presentation and authorise the CEO to continue 
negotiations.  
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Stakeholder Method Purpose Outcome 

Queanbeyan Palerang Council 
16 August 2021 

Zoom meeting CEO 
Council and staff  

Meeting regarding on-going VPA 
negotiations. 

 

Queanbeyan Palerang Council 
23 August 2021 

Zoom meeting CEO 
of QPRC and staff. 

Meeting regarding on-going VPA 
negotiations. 

 

Queanbeyan Palerang Council 
30 January 2022 

Email to QPRC staff Update on Project progress and notify of 
VPA legal negotiations ready to proceed 
with QPRC lawyers. 

 

Queanbeyan Palerang 
Councillors 21 Feb 2022 

Emailed all new 
Councillors post 
December election 

To introduce BCSF and offered to meet 
on site or in their office. 

Council organising a presentation in March 
2022.  

RFS Bungendore Face to face meeting 
and BCSF site visit. 

Inform RFS of Project.  Seek feedback 
and concerns.   

Agreed to carry out on-going consultation and 
involvement if the Project is built.  

RFS Mount Fairy Face to face meeting 
and BCSF site visit. 

Inform RFS of Project.  Seek feedback 
and concerns.   

Agreed to carry out on-going consultation and 
involvement if the Project is built.  

RFS Taylor’s Creek Face to face meeting 
and BCSF site visit. 

Inform RFS of Project.  Seek feedback 
and concerns.   

Agreed to carry out on-going consultation and 
involvement if the Project is built.  

Bungendore Sands Telephone followed 
by meeting with the 
Managing Director. 

Inform about BCSF, supplied map and 
information sheet. 

Stated no objections but concerned that dust 
from the quarry may impact the solar farm and 
he does not want to field complaints. BCSF 
believes the westerly and easterly prevailing 
winds will not impact panels. 
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Stakeholder Method Purpose Outcome 

Holcim sand quarry Meeting with the Area 
Manager. 

Introduced project, supplied map and 
information sheet.  

Stated no objections to the project.   

Paragalli sand quarry Meeting with the 
Managing Director. 

Introduced project, supplied map and 
information sheet. Discussed impact to 
their operations / licence due to location of 
substation.   

Agreed to reduce quarry licence area to 
accommodate substation and BESS.   

Bungendore Climate Action 
Group 

Meeting overlooking 
site.   

Invitation to Open Day 

Project description by one of the BCSF 
Founders 

 

Continue to keep BCAG informed of the Project 
progress.  

Tarago Progress Society Phone call to 
President. 

Project description by one of the BCSF 
Founders 

Committed to keep Tarago Progress Society 
informed of progress and local job opportunities 
if Project proceeds. 

Bungendore Chamber of 
Commerce 

Phone call and Email 
to President 8 Dec 

Project description by one of the BCSF 
Founders.  The President presented 
information to the Executive Committee. 

Committed to keep the Chamber of Commerce 
informed of progress and local job opportunities 
if the Project proceeds. 

Bungendore Landcare Meeting in person Informed of Project at AGM Will keep informed. 

Tarago Progress Association Telephone call Informed of Project and potential for jobs Will keep informed 

Local business Telephone Informed of Project Expressed support for Project 

Local business Met with owner Informed of Project Expressed support for Project 
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Stakeholder Method Purpose Outcome 

Local business Visit business Informed of Project Expressed support for Project 

Local business Owner Informed of Project, been on site Expressed support for Project 

Local businesses Owner Informed of Project Expressed support for Project 
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4. Stakeholder ideas incorporated into BCSF  

The following ideas arose as a result of discussions with stakeholders and have helped to shape the Project. 

Stakeholder 
Group 

Ideas that arose during discussions 
with stakeholders 

Outcome 

Stakeholder 
Group 1 

 A stakeholder asked if The Bungendore 
Community Foundation could be 
considered in the CBSS.   

The Bungendore Community Foundation has been recommended to residents who 
are part of the CBSS but would prefer to donate the funds to a charity. Eligible 
recipients of the CBSS who do not want to receive funds have been notified that BCSF 
will donate their funds to the Bungendore Community Foundation. 

Stakeholder 
Group 1 

Project footprint should be more organic in 
shape 

This recommendation was agreed to however, the Project will by virtue of existing 
topography and environmental constraints be organic in shape. 

Stakeholder 
Group 3 

Eliminate panels from the northern, 
elevated section. 

Suggestion accommodated.  

Stakeholder 
Group 3 

Tree planting on northern corner of the 
Project 

Incorporated into the landscape design 

Stakeholder 
Groups 3&4 

Stakeholder groups asked for CBSS 
payments to be made to individuals with a 
potential view of the Project rather than a 
community project. 

Project accommodated this request. 

Stakeholder 
Group 3 

Requested that we inform the Department 
that not all recipients of the CBSS 
approved of the Project.   

Suggestion accommodated. 

Stakeholder 
Group 3 

Tree planting along Butmaroo (Deep) 
Creek  

Incorporated into landscape design. 
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Stakeholder 
Group 

Ideas that arose during discussions 
with stakeholders 

Outcome 

Agency Council suggested funds be allocated to 
the Sports Hub in Bungendore. 

The Proponent intends to accommodate this request through the VPA. 

Wider 
community 

Locals prioritised for jobs and services. The Proponent agrees to prioritise locals jobs and services wherever possible.The 
CBSS also stipulates funds from the CBSS should be spent in town to ensure money 
flows back to the local community. 
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5. Future consultation activities 

BCSF will continue to regularly engage with the community and stakeholders throughout all stages 
of the project and continue to use a broad range of engagement methods to suit the target 
audience.  In order to ensure a broad saturation of project information and demonstrate presence 
in the community, BCSF also intends to continually inform local media regarding project updates, 
events and milestones.  

Neighbours and the wider community will be provided with regular updates, information and access 
to the project Founder during the exhibition, pre-construction, construction and operational phases.  
The Project email and Freecall will remain in place and BCSF representatives will address 
feedback and concerns as they arise.  The website will continue to be updated and the e-news will 
be distributed as milestones are reached.    

5.1 Exhibition 
The EIS will be placed on exhibition via the NSW Major Projects website for a minimum of 30 days.  
During this time the public will be able to view the EIS and associated specialist studies and make 
formal submissions on the proposal. Issues raised in submissions will be addressed by BCSF in a 
Response to Submission report.  During the EIS exhibition period BCSF will host an on-site 
community drop-in information session over a weekend.  This event will enable the community to 
view the Project on-site, ask questions and provide feedback. This session will be promoted in the 
local newspaper, online newsletter, stakeholder mailing lists.  Information for Exhibition Open Day 
will include:  

- Site location and layout 
- Environmental studies 
- Visual analysis 
- Proposed landscaping 
- Traffic and access information 
- Construction timeline 
- Benefits for local community - local priority for jobs, services, how to register  
- Indigenous jobs 
- Agri-solar 
- Community Consultation 
- Community Benefit Sharing Scheme 
- Feedback mechanisms. 

5.2 Pre-Construction Phase 
A Community and Stakeholder Consultation plan will be implemented to manage any concerns of 
stakeholders and impacts on landholders.  This will include: 

- Liaison with Council  
- Develop the following protocols:  

o Protocols to keep the community and stakeholders informed about the progress of 
the project. 
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o Protocols to inform relevant stakeholders of potential impacts of construction 
activities. 

o Protocols to allow the community to make complaints or identify any concerns with 
the project. 

5.2.1 Jobs & Local benefits 
The Founders are familiar with the local business and services.  A strategy will be developed to 
ensure the local community, wider community and Indigenous networks are aware of jobs and 
opportunities related to BCSF.  This will include:  

 

- Community information session to ensure the community fully understands the 
opportunities and local residents, businesses and services are able to register interest 
in being involved in or benefit from the project.  This will include the distribution of 
media releases, social media campaigns, advertising in the local newspapers, emailing 
relevant Indigenous communities and educational facilities.  

5.3 Construction Phase  
During construction of the project, a Community and Stakeholder Consultation Plan will be 
implemented to manage the concerns of stakeholders and any impacts on local landowners. The 
plan will include but not be limited to protocols to provide updated information regarding the 
project, including information regarding the Project’s program and proposed construction activities, 
potential impacts to nearby sensitive receivers and potential changes to local traffic conditions,the 
complaint process, and communication channels.  

5.4 Operation Phase 
During operation of the Project, a Community and Stakeholder Consultation Plan will be 
implemented to manage the concerns of stakeholders and any impacts on local landowners. The 
plan will include (but not be limited to) the following:  

 

- protocols to keep the community and stakeholders updated about the operation of the 
project and its benefits  

- protocols to inform relevant stakeholders of potential impacts of scheduled site activities 
outside of typical operation.  

- protocols to allow the community to make complaints or identify any concerns with the 
project.  

- protocols for managing complaints, queries and feedback  in a timely manner.  
- protocols to keep the community and stakeholders updated about the operation of the 

project and its benefits  

 

Information on how local workers, contractors or service providers can express an interest in the 
operation of the project will be displayed on the project website. Efforts will be made to engage 
with local schools, universities and community groups who may be interested in visiting the site or 
learning more about renewable energy. 
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D.4 Evidence of media releases, articles and open days undertaken 
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Appendix C4 Evidence of media releases, articles and open 
days undertaken
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Appendix C4.1: Regional Independent article 16.12.20 

 
 

 



3 
 

Appendix C4.2: Regional Independent article 29.09.21 



4 
 

Appendix C4.3: Regional Independent ¼ page advertisement  
 

29.09.21  



5 
 

Appendix C4.4: Regional Independent article 06.10.21 
 



6 
 

Appendix C4.5: Regional Independent ¼ page advertisement 
06.10.21 
 
 



7 
 

Appendix C4.6: Open Day DL Brochure  
The Open Day brochure was delivered to 2000 households in region wk beginning 1.11.21 



8 
 

 



9 
 

 

Appendix C4.7: Regional Independent Newspaper ¼ page 
advertisement 3.11.21 



10 
 

 

Appendix C4.8: Online newsletter 6.11.21 
 



11 
 

Appendix C4.9: Regional Independent ¼ page advertisement 
10.11.21 

 



 

NGH Pty Ltd | 20-403 - Final v1  | D-XVII 
 

D.5 Team credentials Landholder consultation 

 



Appendix C5 Team Credentials  

Team Practitioners Experience 

Consultation team Jane Osborne, BCSF Pty 
Ltd 

Jane has worked as a media director and communications consultant for over 20 years.  She has been a director of 
media at the Department of Environment and a communications consultation for the Clean Energy Council.     

 Dominic Osborne, BCSF 
Pty Ltd 

Dominic is a local farmer who is a passionate supporter of regenerative agriculture and environmental rehabilitation.   
With Jane, he is the main landowner for the project. He has lived on the proposed site his whole life. 

 Luke Osborne, BCSF Pty 
Ltd , BCSF Pty Ltd 

Luke is a farmer and neighbour of the project. He has worked in renewable energy for over 20 years. One of his 
passions has been for renewable energy to work with neighbours to leave a positive legacy in the community. He 

was a major contributor the NSW Guideline for benefits sharing and is an active board member for RE-Alliance, an 
NGO improving community outcomes from renewable energy. 

 Gerard Reiter, BCSF Pty 
Ltd 

Gerard Reiter is a power systems engineer with over 20 years experience with transmission-scale grid systems and 
renewable energy integration. He has a deep understanding of Australia’s evolving electricity sector as well as 

considerable experience in leading the development of community-sensitive power system projects. 

EIS team Brooke Marshall, NGH 
Pty Ltd 

Brooke is a Certified Environmental Practitioner (CEnvP) with over 17 years’ experience in environmental 
assessment. 

Zeina Jokadar, NGH Pty 
Ltd 

Zeina is a Certified Environmental Practitioner (CEnvP) with over 19 years’ experience in environmental 
assessment. 

Ainslee Roser, NGH Pty 
Ltd 

Ainslee is an Environmental Consultant with over three years’ experience in environmental assessment. 

Sarah Dale, NGH Pty Ltd Sarah is an Environmental Consultant with over five years’ experience in environmental assessment. 

Zoe Cox, NGH Pty Ltd Zoe is an Environmental Consultant with over three years’ experience in environmental assessment. 



Team Practitioners Experience 

BDAR team Beth Noel, NGH Pty Ltd Beth is a BAM Accredited Assessor with over 21 years’ experience. 

Rebecca Reid, NGH Pty 
Ltd 

Rebecca is an ecologist with over six years’ experience. 

Jared Graham-Higgs, 
NGH Pty Ltd 

Jared is an ecologist with over one year’s experience. 

ACHA team Matthew Barber, NGH 
Pty Ltd 

Matthew is the General Manager at NGH and has over 30 years’ experience. 

Jakob Ruhl, NGH Pty Ltd Jakob is a Principal Heritage Consultant with over 15 years’ experience. 

Ali Byrne, NGH Pty Ltd Ali is the Regional Manager for Heritage NSW/Victoria and has over 11 years’ experience. 

Jorge Fuenzalida 
Miralles, NGH Pty Ltd 

Jorge is a Heritage consultant with over one years’ experience. 

SoHI team Jakob Ruhl, NGH Pty Ltd Jakob is a Principal Heritage Consultant with over 15 years’ experience. 

Ali Byrne, NGH Pty Ltd Ali is the Regional Manager for Heritage NSW/Victoria and has over 11 years’ experience. 

Visual Assessment team Ashley Robertson, Moir 
Landscape Architecture 

Pty Ltd 

Ashley Robertson is a  Senior Associate with 12 years’ experience in Visual Impact Assessment. She has extensive 
experience in undertaking Landscape and Visual Impact Assessments for large scale renewable energy projects 

throughout New South Wales. The report was prepared by with the assistance of  

Saurabh Wagh Moir 
Landscape Architecture 

Pty Ltd 

Saurabh is a Graduate Landscape Architect with three years’ experience in Visual Impact Assessment. 



Team Practitioners Experience 

Traffic Assessment team Mike Willson, Amber 
Traffic Consultants 

Mike is a traffic consultant who has significant experience and knowledge with renewable energy projects, including 
preparing a number of TIAs throughout New South Wales. 

Noise and Vibration 
Assessment team 

Michael Chung, Renzo 
Tonin & Associates 

Michael is a Noise and Vibration Specialist who has conducted environmental noise and vibration assessments as 
part of the EIS for over a dozen solar farms, including Dunedoo, Sunraysia, Nevertire, Beryl, and Wellington Solar 

Farm. 

Hydrological and Hydraulic 
Analysis team 

Ashley Bond, Footprint 
(NSW) Pty Ltd 

Ashley is a Civil and Environmental Engineer with experience across both the public and private sectors., including 
hydrological and hydraulic modelling and advice for Solar Farms and Wind Farms. 

Reflective Glare 
Assessment team 

Dr Peter Georgiou, SLR 
Consulting Australia Pty 

Ltd 

Peter is currently Technical Director at SLR Consulting.  

 Dr Neihad Al-Khaldy, 
SLR Consulting Australia 

Pty Ltd 

Neihad is a Technical Director. He holds Green Star, CBD Lighting and NABERS Accredited Professional 
certifications. His areas of expertise include exterior lighting, solar, reflectivity and overshadowing.  

Preliminary 
Geotechnical Investigation 
team 

Michael Jones, Douglas 
Partners Pty Ltd 

Michael is a Senior Geotechnical Engineer and Principal of the company with over 22 years experience in field 
assessments and reporting for a wide range of projects including extensive experience in infrastructure.Projects 
including solar farms. He is also the Regional Manager for Southern NSW and ACT. 

 

 

 


	Appendix C1 Agency consultation.pdf
	letter to NGH Environmental for EIA for SSD of Solar farm.pdf
	Application No: PR.2021.1014


	Appendix C2 CSES Final.pdf
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
	13. Indigenous Consultation & Engagement Strategy
	14. Timeline, Communications activities & Implementation Plan
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

	Appendix C3 Summary of activties final.pdf
	Table of contents
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
	3.4.1 Aggregated feedback from respondents from the open day events was as follows:

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
	Appendix A
	Appendix B Appendix heading level 1
	B.1 Appendix Heading 2
	B.1.1 Appendix Heading 3
	B.1.2 Appendix Heading 3





	Appendix C4 Evidence of medi  final.pdf
	Appendix C4 Evidence of media releases, articles and open days undertaken Appendix C4.1: Regional Independent article 16.12.20
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
	Appendix C4.7: Regional Independent Newspaper ¼ page advertisement 3.11.21
	Appendix C4.8: Online newsletter 6.11.21
	Appendix C4.9: Regional Independent ¼ page advertisement 10.11.21
	Appendix C4.9: Regional Independent ¼ page advertisement 10.11.21




